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S

ignature International Berhad understands the value of growth. From our humble
beginning almost two decades ago, we have grown to an internationally-renowned
brand of quality home solutions that continue to meet and exceed market demands.
The journey has been fraught with challenges but the commitment demonstrated by our
management and employees led the Group to where we are today – a thriving listed-company
with a reputation unsurpassed by others in the industry.
However, our successes will not be the basis of complacence. We are committed to growth
in all forms – strategically, organisationally, organically, and geographically. We see
tremendous opportunities in the act of growth and we invite you to join us in realising our
future. Together, let’s grow beyond all limits.
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VISION

To be the thought leader in living space solutions,
inspiring and delighting our customers the world over.

MISSION

The Six Signature Pillars
EXTERNAL

OUR BRAND
We strive to uphold our
reputation as a world-class
brand.

OUR CUSTOMERS
We are committed to deliver
the WOW experience to
customers at each touchpoint
from planning to delivery and
beyond to build customer
loyalty.

OUR REACH
Dealers and specifiers are
our means to WOW. We aim to
offer them fully intergrated
services and seamless
support allowing them to
deliver WOW.

OUR TECHNOLOGY AND
PROCESS
We push ourselves to design
meaningful innovations and
improve our processes so
that we constantly enhance
our customers’ lifestyles.

OUR ORGANISATION
We aim for sustainable
growth through the formula
of INTELLIGENCE +
IMAGINATION+ INSPIRATION

INTERNAL

OUR PEOPLE
We are passionate about what
we do and aspire to create an
environment where we work
well together.
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from left to right:
1. WONG MAW CHUAN
2. DR. LIM YIN CHOW
3. MICHAEL CHOOI YOEY SUN
4. DATO’ ANUAR BIN
OTHMAN
5. TAN KEE CHOONG
6. YAP KHONG
7. NIK MOHD ISKANDAR BIN
NIK HASSAN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATO’ ANUAR BIN OTHMAN
Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Malaysian
Dato’ Anuar bin Othman, aged 58, was appointed to the
Board of Signature International Berhad on 20 November
2007.
In 1974, he obtained Part I & II of the external ICMA (Institute
of Cost and Management Accounts) qualifications from
Institute of Technology, MARA. In 1975, he completed
Parts III & IV of the external ICMA in the United Kingdom
and received training as a Cost Accountant in the United
Kingdom on a Harrisons & Crosfield scholarship under a
joint program with Luton College of Technology and the
London School of Accountancy.
In 1975, he joined Wilkinson Process Rubber Co. Bhd, a
subsidiary of Harrisons & Crosfield Plc, United Kingdom,
as a Cost Accountant and in 1982, he left and joined
Jurudata Sdn Bhd as Business Manager. In 1985, he left
Jurudata Sdn Bhd and joined TJ Holdings Sdn Bhd as
General Manager. In 1986, he was appointed as Executive
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Director of Hatibudi Sdn Bhd, a company in which he was
also a shareholder. He later joined United Engineers (M)
Bhd as its Executive Director in 1987 and as its Managing
Director in 1990. In 1994, he was appointed as Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Kumpulan Pinang
Holdings Sdn Bhd, a position he held until 1999. In 2000,
he concentrated his efforts on his own business under
General & Global Holdings Sdn Bhd and its group of
companies where he is currently the Executive Chairman.
He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company.
He has no family relationship with any other Director and/
or major shareholder of the Company and does not hold
any shares in the Company and its subsidiary companies.
He has not entered into any transaction, whether directly
or indirectly, that has a conflict of interest with the
Company.
He attended five (5) out of six (6) Board meetings of the
Company held during the financial year 2011.
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TAN KEE CHOONG
Group Managing Director
Malaysian
Tan Kee Choong, aged 49, was appointed to the Board
of Signature International Berhad on 20 November
2007. He is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He started his career in 1990 when he was employed
as a Sales Executive in Better Living Grand Sdn Bhd,
a company in the trading of building materials and
design of kitchen cabinets, handling retail sales of
kitchen cabinets. In 1992, he joined Home Scene Sdn
Bhd as a Project Executive handling project sales of
kitchen cabinets. He left Home Scene Sdn Bhd in 1994
and founded Signature Cabinet Sdn Bhd with Michael
Chooi.
As the co-founder and Managing Director, his main
responsibilities are in developing the strategic direction
of the Signature Group. He is also in charge of product
research and development on kitchen systems and

wardrobe systems. He has approximately 20 years of
experience in the kitchen systems industry, gaining his
experience through a hands-on management style. He
has contributed significantly to the production process
improvements, product quality, brand recognition,
research and development and more importantly,
market penetration throughout Malaysia and business
expansion overseas.
He is currently a Director of Kubiq Sdn Bhd, Signature
Obicorp Sdn Bhd, Signature Aluminium Sdn Bhd and
other subsidiary companies of Signature Cabinet Sdn
Bhd.
He hold 31,200,004 shares in the Company and has
no family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the Company. He has not entered into
any transaction, whether directly or indirectly, that has
a conflict of interest with the Company.
He attended all the six (6) Board meetings of the
Company held during the financial year 2011.
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Board of Directors (cont’d)

MICHAEL CHOOI YOEY SUN
Group Executive Director
Malaysian

WONG MAW CHUAN
Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian

Chooi Yoey Sun, aged 48, was appointed to the Board of
Signature International Berhad on 20 November 2007.
He is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Wong Maw Chuan, aged 47, was appointed to the Board
of Signature International Berhad on 20 November 2007.

His career started in 1990, where he started his
venture in MJKB Sdn Bhd, a company trading in home
appliances and furniture. Since then, he has developed
invaluable hands-on experience in merchandising and
retail distribution outlet. In 1994, he joined his partner,
Tan Kee Choong, in establishing Signature Cabinet Sdn
Bhd.
As the co-founder and Executive Director, he draws on
the vast experience amassed from his earlier ventures
and channels it towards spearheading a dynamic sales
and marketing division within the Signature Group.
He brings with him approximately 17 years of experience
in the marketing and management of kitchen systems.
He is entrusted with the main task of making kitchen
and related products as a household necessity as well
as making the brand Signature Kitchen a household
brand. The current brand recognition and market
penetration achieved by Signature Kitchen nationwide
as well as overseas is a testament to his success.
He is currently a Director of Kubiq Sdn Bhd, Signature
Obicorp Sdn Bhd, Signature Aluminium Sdn Bhd and
other subsidiary companies of Signature Cabinet Sdn
Bhd.
He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company.
He hold 31,028,250 shares in the Company and has
no family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the Company. He has not entered into
any transaction, whether directly or indirectly, that has
a conflict of interest with the Company.
He attended five (5) out of the six (6) Board meetings of
the Company held during the financial year 2011.

He graduated in 1987 from Tunku Abdul Rahman
College with a Diploma in Financial Accounting. He
subsequently obtained his professional qualification from
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
he is currently a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants and a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA) as well as a
Certified Financial Planner (CFP).
He started his career in 1988 as an Audit Assistant in
Roger, Yue, Tan & Associate. In 1994, he took up the post
of Audit Manager at KPMG Peat Marwick where he was
involved in numerous audit assignments, due diligence
and mergers and acquisitions exercises. He left KPMG
Peat Marwick in 1997 and joined Analabs Resources
Berhad (“Analabs”) as Chief Financial Officer. He was
actively involved in the restructuring of the company as
well as the listing of Analabs on the Second Board of
Bursa Malaysia.
Upon the listing of Analabs on the Second Board of
Bursa Malaysia, he was appointed as the Executive
Director, mainly in charge of corporate finance and
business development of the company. Analabs was
subsequently promoted to the Main Board of Bursa
Malaysia and thereafter he resigned as the Executive
Director of Analabs on 31 October 2002. In 2002, he set
up a consulting firm which provides professional and
business consulting services to private limited as well as
public listed companies.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company.
He has no family relationship with any other Director and/
or major shareholder of the Company and does not hold
any shares in the Company and its subsidiary companies.
He has not entered into any transaction, whether directly
or indirectly, that has a conflict of interest with the
Company.
He attended all the six (6) Board meetings of the Company
held during the financial year 2011.
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YAP KHONG
Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian
Yap Khong, aged 66, was appointed to the Board of
Signature International Berhad on 20 November 2007.
He graduated in 1970 from University of Malaya
with a Bachelor of Economics (Honours) and he is
an Associate Member of the Chartered Institute of
Bankers (United Kingdom). He has more than 30 years
of experience in the banking and financial sector. He
has held various senior management positions in two
financial institutions, namely UMBC and Alliance Bank
Berhad.
He held the position of Senior Banker in Alliance Bank
Berhad prior to his retirement in 2006, where he was
responsible for marketing commercial and corporate
businesses. He is also a business advisor to a few
private companies.
He is also a member of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee of the
Company.
He has no family relationship with any other Director
and/or major shareholder of the Company and does
not hold any shares in the Company and its subsidiary
companies. He has not entered into any transaction,
whether directly or indirectly, that has a conflict of
interest with the Company.
He attended all the six (6) Board meetings of the
Company held during the financial year 2011.
NIK MOHD ISKANDAR BIN NIK HASSAN
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian
Nik Mohd Iskandar bin Nik Hassan, aged 51, was
appointed to the Board of Signature International
Berhad on 20 November 2007.
He graduated in 1984 with a Bachelor of Science (Hons)
in Civil Engineering from University of Strathcylde,
United Kingdom. His career started in 1984 as project
engineer with the Ministry of Federal Territory and he
is responsible for projects coordination with the local
authorities and private consultants.
In 1987, he left the organisation and joined Jabatan
Kerja Raya (“JKR”) Wilayah Persekutuan as project

engineer mainly for projects in Kuala Lumpur. In 1991,
he left JKR to join Jabatan Perumahan Negara as
project engineer. Between 1996 and 1998, he was with
the Development and Enforcement Division of Labuan
Development Authority as Senior Manager.
In 1999, he was appointed as Managing Director
of Duamas Consolidated Sdn Bhd and left the
organisation in 2011 to join ATLANTIC Return Sdn Bhd
as the Executive Chairman. He is also an Executive
Director of Ismafinie (M) Sdn Bhd. He is currently
concentrating his effort in his own telecommunication
business under Smart One Mobile (M) Sdn Bhd where
he is the Managing Director.
He holds 121 shares in the Company. He has no
family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the Company.
He attended (3) out of six (6) Board meetings of the
Company held during the financial year 2011.
DR. LIM YIN CHOW
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian
Dr. Lim Yin Chow, aged 48, was appointed to the Board
of Signature International Berhad on 18 June 2009.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
MBBS degree in 1992. He has many years of business
experience in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia
where he founded several companies and he is fully
involved in the running of the companies such as
operations & management, business development and
corporate financial management of the companies.
He has no family relationship with any other Director
and/or major shareholder of the Company and no
conflict of interest with the Company. He is deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company by
virtue of his shareholding in HSC Healthcare Sdn
Bhd, a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is
currently a director of HSC Healthcare Sdn Bhd and
several other private limited companies.
He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company.
He attended all the six (6) Board meetings of the
Company held during the financial year 2011.
Note : None of the Directors has been convicted for any offences
within the past 10 years other than traffic offences, if any.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RESULTS

30 June 2011
RM’000

30 June 2010
RM’000

30 June 2009
RM’000

Revenue

116,117

138,363

158,420

6,697

15,028

19,895
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5.6
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24.9

0.77

0.77

1.04
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158,420

PAT attributable to shareholders
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REVENUE ANALYSIS
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Kitchen and Wardrobe systems
White goods and built-in kitchen appliances
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
DATO’ ANUAR BIN OTHMAN
Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Malaysian

Dear esteemed stakeholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors of Signature International
Berhad, I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2011.
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chairman’s statement (cont’d)

Convergence – the move towards
creating a common language in
financial reporting globally
The knock-on effect of the global financial downturn
after 2008 has left lasting effects which echo throughout
corporate business practices worldwide, including
approaches in financial reporting. As corporate
Malaysia moves towards a full convergence with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) by
2012, the Group has taken the necessary measures to
ensure compliance so as to provide greater credibility
and transparency to our financial reporting, especially
when the Group is establishing its presence outside
Malaysia.
The Group is supportive for full disclosure in line with
good corporate governance practices and transparency
that is reflected in true and fair reporting. However,
the Board also believes that moderation and finding a
middle-ground are the ideal approach to this.
Signature is in a scenario where the Group is making
a provision for long-term debt albeit viewed through
a short-term perspective. Conservatism is a prudent
trait but ultra-conservatism may have an undesirable
impact on our perceived performance for this year,
where it will distort the actual financial performance
of the Group.
The Board is of the view that management has been
consistent with the adoption of reporting standards,
and have been consistent in making the necessary
provisions for debt over the years. However, the
diligence and prudence practiced by management
will not be apparent through this year’s sheer figures
alone.
From my perspective as a member of the Board of
Directors, I would like to stress that this year’s reported
provision for long-term debts is not a major hurdle to
the Group’s current and future performance. Recovery
– if we were to use this term in the context of this year’s
balance sheet – is not only a given but also expected
over time.
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Therefore, I urge our long-term stakeholders to
consider a holistic overview of the Group’s business
results to date as time and reporting conventions are
not the sole measures of success.

Challenges – Tidal movements and
megatrends in the industry
Like any corporate entity earning its place in the
global economy, Signature International Berhad has
encountered its own challenges within the economic
cycle. The tidal movements of the industry certainly
have its effects on the Group even as management
builds up a bigger ship.
In today’s global economy, no country is a
metaphorical island. The effects of the recent global
financial recession is a stark reminder of how closely
regional economies are integrated with each other.
Opportunities and markets that were highly coveted
may lose their appeal with the space of a few months,
due to downturns in their internal economies or
external trade. India and China are expanding at a
furious pace and increased international free trade will
put pressure on global players to be more competitive
yet prudent at the same time.
Conversely, individualism and an increased global
appetite for consumerism have led to a wider yet far
more competitive global market. This is also apparent
in developing nations and new global economic
centres. Consumerism now finds its place among an
increasingly connected world where geographical and
physical boundaries are gradually diminished. New
concepts, business models and ideas have a place in
this new marketplace, but only for those with enough
foresight to harness these.
These macroeconomic factors bear substantial weight
on the Group’s operations for the past financial year. As
an economy, Malaysia is dependent on global markets.
While the government and industry hold optimism for
growth, individual players are still adopting cautious
approaches to mitigate the possible effects these
global factors may have on the local and regional
markets.
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chairman’s statement (cont’d)

Even within the local industry, we have seen moves
towards consolidation among major property
development players who are now actively taking
stock of their assets and operations. Mergers and
acquisitions were also a focus point last year as
industry players looked to strengthen alliances or
ensure supply chains.
As a group, Signature will also feel the effects of
these economic cycles. Locally, the Group’s position
in the industry will experience increasing competition
when seeking out new business avenues, a significant
development considering the bulk of the Signature’s
profits is domestically-driven. Internationally, the
Group will have to consolidate regional expansion
efforts while avoiding market gluts and pitfalls, while
continuing to offer innovation and creativity as a unique
differentiator among other global players.
However, the Board is confident in the management’s
revised focus on sustainable markets. There exists a
sound strategy – in which the Board is in agreement
with management – that will underscore the Group’s
continued commitment to growth even within these
economic and industrial tidal movements. It would
only be folly to expect radical expansion in these trying
times, but the management’s prudent approach will
create a rooted anchor for the Group’s current stage of
growth that can steer Signature away from avoidable
risks.

Change – a fundamental process
Last year, the Board advocated transformation as
the next stepping stone for the Group’s growth.
The long-term goal for Signature will of course
include operational and business strategies through
acquisitive growth, but as of now the Board echoes
management decisions for consolidation in view of the
current environment and continued rebranding efforts
from last year.
However, there is still room for organic operational
expansion which will be seen in the introduction of
franchising opportunities for Kubiq, Signature’s answer

to the growing mass market retail segment. The Board
sees tremendous potential in Kubiq as the next driver
for the Group’s retail expansion, where it can tap upon
the increasing spending power of growing consumer
markets in China and India.
The need for a paradigm shift still holds true for the
Group in the past financial year and will continue to do
so in the future. The Board sees incredible potential
in the fusing of the Group’s business networks,
suppliers, clients and customers to propel Signature
International Berhad towards its next step of becoming
a prominent player in the industry. In these strategic
alliances lies the key.
As in the past, the Board sees the Group’s shares as its
most important asset and its best currency for growth.
We still see great potential in leveraging on these for
business expansions abroad and diversification of the
Group’s business portfolio. Using shares instead of
cash is the best way for Signature to maximise credit
while minimising deposits.
The Board looks forward to the time when Signature
International Berhad matures in its current phase of
transformation, and is excited about the potential that
the Group stands to achieve.

Appreciation and Acknowledgement
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to
show our appreciation to our customers, business
partners and stakeholders, who have been the drivers
of our achievements. Most importantly, Signature
International Group would like to acknowledge the trust
and support of its stakeholders, whose unwavering
confidence will be rewarded when the Group begins its
upward momentum as a promising listed entity.
Yours sincerely,
Dato’ Anuar bin Othman
Independent Non-Executive Chairman
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW
OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OPERATIONS
Dear fellow shareholders and associates,
I am pleased to present the fourth review of financials and operations of Signature
International Group (“Signature” or “the Group”). In our fourth year on Bursa Malaysia,
Signature has embarked on an intensive exploration of our business objectives and
goals, resulting in a continuation of the fundamental shift we implemented during the
last financial year in order to drive our core business values.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (cont’d)

T

his year, the Group has had to overcome numerous challenges in the form of industrywide consolidation. However, Signature also identified opportunities which we are very
excited to pursue in the larger perspective of long-term expansion. As a listed corporation
in its early stages of growth, I am glad to report that the Group’s performance is well within the
management’s expectations of operational effectiveness and capability.
Financial Performance

Group revenue dipped slightly by 16.0% to almost
RM116.1 million from the previous financial year. This
corresponded with a fall in the Group’s profit before
tax (PBT) by 46.0%, representing RM11.1 million this
year compared to RM20.5 million from the previous
financial year. The Group’s net profit stands at RM6.7
million this year in contrast to RM15.3 million from last
year.
The drop in group revenue can be attributed to the effect
of a lower project orderbook from the last financial
year. This was not merely due to a lack of projects on
the market, but also because of the knock-on effect
of the sub-prime crisis in 2009 where there were
less projects secured and also the Group’s strategic
avoidance of non-profitable contracts both in local and
overseas operations. In summary, short-term growth
has been slowed by cautiousness on the part of the
property development industry in high-value projects.
I echo the thoughts of the Chairman of the Group,
where Signature’s true performance may not be
readily reflected in this year’s financial statements.
The key factor that detracted from this year’s net
profit is the provision of RM8.3 million for doubtful
debts. While Signature has consistently adopted and
advocated full disclosure in line with good corporate
governance practices, the ultra-conservative provision
for long-term debt will not reflect the true financial
performance of the Group this year. However, this
representation is expected to improve over the next
few years and management highly recommends that
stakeholders take a long-term view of Signature’s
growth.
I would like to emphasise that Signature’s gross
margins are consistent and sustainable, and in line
with our expectations of corporate performance. This
takes into consideration changes and challenges in the
macro-environment that the Group operates in, and
includes our retail, project and overseas operations.

Signature achieved earnings per share of 5.6 sen for
the 2011 financial year as compared to 12.5 sen in
2010, while investors can expect a net first and final
dividend per share of 2 sen for the 2011 financial year.
I foresee that our performance will stabilise in the
coming year, when we will then see the first stages
of an upwards swing. Signature is optimistic with next
year’s projected performance, and we expect growth in
operations and gross profits.

Signature International Berhad
Signature International Berhad is committed to
expanding the Group beyond our current limitations
and challenges. Even with the current environment
and the difficulties it may pose to industry players, we
are diligent in exploring opportunities in both local and
international markets, as well as the retail and project
and have active expansion plans in the pipeline.
Signature sees vast potential to grow the brand as
an international name synonymous with quality and
prestige, and we are keen to share our solutions
and offerings to thriving property markets. We have
embarked on a market study of China and foresee
tremendous opportunities present there. This and
other opportunities will require due diligence and
analysis, but the Group is also aware of the need to
enter promising markets quickly and decisively.
However, the key highlight of Signature’s growth in the
coming years will be the retail network expansion of
the Kubiq business. Kubiq was incorporated on the 9th
of September 2009 with the objective to offer quality yet
affordable modular kitchen systems in response to the
growing demand in the low-to-mid market segment,
which represents a substantial 80% market share in
the kitchen systems industry. Its “self-involvement”
concept offers a no-frills approach which helps to
keep costs low and put control back in the hands of
the customer, much in the same way low cost airlines
operate.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (cont’d)

The Group sees the significant opportunities present in
expanding Kubiq’s operations into a franchise business
model in the hands of motivated entrepreneurs
nationwide in order to meet the needs of a fastexpanding yet discerning mass-market customer
base. We expect to obtain the franchising license for
Kubiq by the middle of next year. The move to create
Kubiq franchisee presence in key growing markets
will result in a more flexible, personal and grassroots
approach that stands to grow the Group’s operations
and business exponentially.

Operational Review
In order to diversify our investments, Signature’s
project portfolio will be expanded further to cover all
areas including a combined focus on overseas markets
and local dealers. While the performance of the
Group’s current portfolio dipped this year, this area still
represents substantial business interests for future
growth. The Group will adopt a proactive approach in
aggressive direct marketing and is confident that our
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current offerings and future developments will be
strong selling point for the industry. Apart from China,
our focus will be on growing markets in India, Vietnam,
Sri Lanka, and Indonesia.
In regards to the local project market, the Group intends
to expand out of the Klang Valley and spread its wings
to East Malaysia and Iskandar in the southern region of
Peninsular Malaysia – key growth areas which will be
providing huge opportunities for developers ready for
a slice of the investment pie. We foresee more foreign
and local investments into the areas, which are set for
dynamic growth as future commercial, educational,
residential and business hubs.
The Group also embarked on more direct marketing on
a retail level, creating brand touch-point opportunities
to the grassroots level. This involved participation in
more exhibitions and road shows this year, bringing
the quintessential Signature experience out of the
showroom and directly to the customer. The Group is
revitalising and reinforcing our sales representation in
order to create a level of service that will progress on
a constant basis.
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In the spirit of constant improvement and going beyond
all limits, Signature has also upgraded our workflow
technology. One of our core highlights in this area is
the upgrading of customised design software which is
the only one of its kind in the industry with enhanced
features and photorealism. The significance of this
technology lies in its ability to help our customers
visualise the quality and solutions offered by our
brands, easing our marketing efforts and ensuring
customer satisfaction.

Strategy and Outlook
There are opportunities for us at Signature International
Berhad to form key alliances for ourselves with
strategic partners and stakeholders. Looking at the
stellar growth of Signature International Berhad, it is
only logical that we actively explore avenues to position
ourselves as key players within the industry. Enhanced
strategic alliances with our long-term partners and
stakeholders are on the table, and mutual cooperation
will only stand to bring long-term operational stability
and growth.

Management has relooked at past overseas operations
that have not been promising, and have revised our
strategies for our overseas expansion. One of these
includes the consolidation of operations into focused
geographical areas, namely India and China. We are
extremely excited about the finalisation and unveiling
of these plans, and we hope to share on these in the
near future.
As a relatively new listed entity, Signature depends
on organic growth and the results of these will not be
immediately obvious in the short term. Nevertheless,
Signature will not stop exploring acquisitional growth
opportunities in the local and global environments we
operate in.
All this will serve to provide positive spillover effects
that we hope to share with our shareholders and
customers in the months to come. I am personally
looking forward to the fruition of this growth strategy
and am optimistic of our future.
Your Sincerely,
Tan Kee Choong
Group Managing Director
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oday, Signature is a much soughtafter name within the industry. Our
local and international clients have
all come to appreciate the benefits of the
Signature experience. They rely on Signature
to be their trusted partner and recognise that
Signature has the ability to deliver distinctive
value-added benefits that makes a positive
impact on the bottom-line of their projects.
Signature advantage comes along with a
promise of unparalleled versatility, design
flexibility, competitive pricing and on-demand
production.

Signature’s competitive advantage also comes from
the excellent relationships built with developers and
strategic partners throughout our history. From mockups to product sourcing, the Signature experience is
apparent in every step of the way. Signature offers
competitive pricing and cutting-edge materials from
a foundation of solid financial backing – a factor to
the time-sensitive nature of the fast-moving property
scene in the region.
The rapid expansion of our project portfolio has led to
opportunities from local and international markets.
We have entered into smart partnerships with selected
foreign partners, who already have established
reputations in these markets. This collaboration has
ensured that we can offer competitive, best-in-class,
high quality living space solutions, to international
project developers.
While consolidating the foundation for the exponential
growth of our global operations, our customized orderon-demand service specifically caters to the needs of
our clients. It epitomises our commitment to create
value-added experiences for our clients.

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

17

PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (cont’d)

Turnberry Villas, Kuala Lumpur
A proud new development by established developers
Sime Darby Property, Turnberry Villas is a new highend landed residential project located within the Kuala
Lumpur Golf and Country Club (KLGCC) in Kuala
Lumpur. The project, offers 128 units in a 10-acre
leasehold low-density development of 12 units per
acre.
An ultra-exclusive development, residents of the
Turnberry Villas can look forward to having celebrity
international golfer Michelle Wie as an occasional
neighbour. Turnberry Villas also represents the first
residential development in the KLGCC – an address
coveted by Klang Valley dwellers who demand no less
than the best in accessibility and exclusivity.
SignatureKitchen worked with renowned international
interior designers and decorators to bring about a
living experience that represents the epitome of highliving.

Hampshire Panorama, Kuala Lumpur
Panorama is a new and sleek condominium development
located in the KLCC enclave. With a fanned-out design
featuring floor-to-ceiling windows, this development
boasts immediate neighbours D’Mayang, Hampshire
Residences, Mayang Court, and Hampshire Park.
Developed by Promatik Emas Sdn Bhd – a joint venture
between UOL Group Limited and General Corporation
Berhad, this prestigious project features an open plan
layout with marble and timber flooring.
Aptly themed “The High Life”, this development’s pure,
clean aesthetic lines and premium facilities inspired
Signature to complement the living space with tasteful
yet immensely practical home solutions.
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Regalia Serviced Apartments, Kuala
Lumpur
A project by Mayland View Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary of
Mayland Group, Regalia Serviced Apartments sit on
Jalan Sultan Ismail in the heart of Kuala Lumpur’s
city centre. Consisting of 38-stories in three wings, the
development features an excellent breakaway resort
environment that demands no less than the best in
interior furnishings and decorations.
Working together with the interior designers and
contractor, Signature achieved a level of quality
befitting the high standards of the project.

Seri Pilmoor, Ara Damansara
Seri Pilmoor represents the epitome of evergreen
living. A high-end residential project located in Ara
Damansara, Petaling Jaya, Seri Pilmoor comprises 74
bungalows and 34 semi-detached homes set within
28.5 acres of freehold land.
The ratio of homes to greenery at Seri Pilmoor has
been designed to stand in perfect equilibrium at 50:50.
No compromise was given for internal amenities, with
rooftop pavilions for each unit offering options for a
swimming pool, reflective pool or jacuzzi. The added
forethought in the development is apparent with its
rainwater harvesting systems, use of formaldehydefree finishes, all-natural products such as bamboo
flooring and asphalt roof shingles made from recycled
materials.
Signature stepped up to the challenge, having already
worked with local and international designers to
deliver solutions that incorporated ‘green’ processes
and finishing, but with the level of finesse expected
from Signature’s premier offerings.
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PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (cont’d)

D’Pulze, Cyberjaya

The Cascades, Kota Damansara

D'Pulze is a fully-integrated lifestyle and commercial
development in Cyberjaya, promising to inject added
zest into the cybercity's residential, commercial and
recreational scene. Touted as a “lifestyle hub”, d'Pulze
is another new development by DPulze Ventures
Sdn Bhd.

The Cascades, Kota Damansara is one of the latest
developments by Mitraland Group, and is set to be one
of the landmarks of that thriving residential area.

Contemporary architectural designs in all 505
residential units open into generous living spaces
spanning 23 stories that offer excellent views of
the Putrajaya skyline. The two blocks of suites are
equipped with first-class that complement the thriving
commercial and lifestyle scene set to happen at the
foot of the development.

The Cascades will join more than six other projects
by Mitraland worth over RM360 million, including
Kiara1888, the developer's first luxury high-rise
residential development in Mont Kiara, Kuala Lumpur.
In line with the developer's aspirations, Signature
developed solutions with the target market and final
design in mind.

Signature built on the visionary projection of the
development by outfitting the residential suites with
practical yet vibrant kitchen solutions that embody the
quickening pulse of Cyberjaya.

KK-Suites, Kota Kinabalu
KK-Suites Residence @ Marina Court Resort
Condominium offers business travellers and tourists
resort-style living in the heart of Kota Kinabalu,
Malaysia's “Nature Resort City”.
KK-Suites represent a niche travel accommdation
option, linked to major banking, business, entertainment
and shopping areas. Each of the condominium units
are fully-furnished with well-equipped kitchenette and
laundry facilities.
Signature's proposal and subsequent implementation
for this project focused on the practicality of the kitchen
solutions for the seasoned traveller. This was possible
through Signature's long-term retail experience and
feedback from end-users.
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Jelutong Heights, Shah Alam

SIGNATURE ALUMINIUM PROJECTS

Jelutong Heights are a development by NBC
Land situated on the breathtaking Bukit Jelutong
neighbourhood in Shah Alam, featuring a breathtaking
view of rolling hills and lush greenery. The exclusive
project of only 108 semi-Ds and bungalows inspired
Signature to draw design elements that complemented
the luxury and privilege of living in such close proximity
to the Bukit Cahaya Forest Reserve.

Apart from providing aluminium fittings and joinings
that form the bedrock of Signature's kitchen and home
cabinetry, Signature Aluminium Sdn Bhd also secured
key contracts in growth areas locally. Two of the key
highlights this year were Central Park, Penang and
Titiwangsa Sentral, Kuala Lumpur.
Signature Aluminium was brought in for its expertise
in aluminium doors, windows and shower screens,
and in doing so demonstrated its value as a trusted
supplier for the industry.

Central Park, Penang
Located at Batu Lanchang, Penang, Central Park
consists of five condominium blocks and one lowto-mid cost apartment block. Representing a total
of 326 units, this project by Insa Properties Sdn Bhd
maximises the use of space through the use of layouts
and furnishings.

The Emperor, Sri Lanka
The Emperor at Crescat City is a
majestic residential apartment
tower comprising 163 luxury
apartments in 35 stories. Sitting
at the top of Colombo's skyline,
the expected high net worth
residents of the development
will enjoy unparalleled sights of
the city in 2-bedroom units to
presidential suites.
Working closely with developers
Asian Hotels and Properties
PLC, Signature's expertise shown through this project
was another example of the international standards
Signature has already achieved.

Titiwangsa Sentral, KL
An exclusive addition to
central city living, Titiwangsa
Sentral is a project by CA+
Associates, a developer that has
already seen success in Penang
and who is set to forge the same
path in the Klang Valley scene.
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he CSR report covers the activities
of Signature International Berhad.
This report focuses on the aspects
of CSR that are considered relevant to the
stakeholders, demonstrating commitment
to quality products and services, workplace,
environment and the Community.

OUR APPROACH
Signature’s views on the subject of sustainability
are based on our current state of affairs and values.
We place high priority towards the interests and
needs of our stakeholders (employees, suppliers and
customers) and the spirit is supported and fostered
through numerous activities. We welcome discussions
with our ‘stakeholders on the subject of sustainability
as this gives us the opportunity to review and improve
on our current state and values.
Our operating principles and commitment to our
stakeholders are an expression of our values, linked to
the following objectives:
• Providing our customers with quality products and
services
• Providing our employees with an excellent working
environment
• Making a positive contribution to the deserving
local communities

ENVIRONMENT

An environmentally
responsible product
policy requires product
quality assurance. Good
quality products mean
fewer rejects at the
production stage and
less wear and tear for
the end consumer. A
longer product lifespan
reduces the depletion
of resources caused by
premature replacement
purchases.
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Corporate Responsibility (cont’d)

QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSURANCE

EFFICIENT USE OF MATERIALS

• CERTIFIED QUALITY MANAGEMENT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ISO9001:2008 STANDARDS

Due to the high volume of material that Signature
processes in production, ensuring the efficient use of
this material is of outmost importance when it comes
to protecting ecological and economical resources. In
this regard, Signature has incorporated the reduction of
wastages and reject products as one of the company’s
Key Result Areas (KRAs) to further emphasise the
importance of efficient use of materials.

Our certification
of ISO9001:2000 in
2003, followed by
ISO9001:2008 which
was
achieved
in
2010, re-affirms our commitment to providing
stakeholders an assurance of quality in fulfilling
their requirements. Successfully gone through
many re-certifications in the subsequent years to
each certification, Signature voluntarily subjects
itself to inspections and audits by independent
ISO inspectors in order to constantly monitor and
enhance its Quality Management Systems.

Training sessions on ISO Quality Management Systems
and 5S are held continuously to raise awareness of all
the production teams in order for them to be continually
concerned with measures in optimising quality,
efficient use of materials and reducing wastages.

REDUCING ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND
WASTAGES
Efforts are put in to monitor our energy and water
consumption and implement awareness programmes
pertaining to waste reduction and green efforts
throughout our premises:
• LED LIGHTING TO SAVE ENERGY
• GREEN LABEL CERTIFICATION
Awarded the Green Label certification from the
Singapore Environment Council (which is also a
member of the Global Ecolabelling Network) in 2009,
Signature again demonstrates our commitment to
sustainable business practices and environmental
conservation, joining the ranks of a global network
of multinational corporations dedicated to green
business practices.
Ecolabelling, as defined by the Global Ecolabelling
Network (GEN), is a voluntary method of
environmental performance certification and
labelling that is practiced globally. Ecolabels
identify overall environmental preference of a
product or service within a specific category based
on life cycle considerations. In contrast to “green”
symbols or eco-friendly statements developed by
manufacturers and service providers, an Ecolabel
is awarded by an impartial third party in relation to
certain products or services that are independently
determined to meet environmental leadership
criteria.
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Since 2009 Signature
has been increasingly
using LED lights in its
kitchen collections as
well as showrooms.
Today, almost 100%
of these lightings are
already based on LED
technology.
However, the biggest
responsibility for
ensuring that energy
is used in an efficient and responsible manner rests
with the employees. In our recently launched ‘GO
GREEN’ campaign, employees are continually made
aware of the importance of the matter via emails,
posters, and the company intranet. Employees
are urged to switch off lights and other sources
of energy consumption (eg. air conditioners and
computers) during their breaks, or when not in use.
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WORKPLACE

• PRINTING GREEN
Under the ‘Go Green’
Campaign, employees
are reminded continually
to print only when
necessary, and use
emails, presentations or
review documents online
where possible. Taking
advantage of all the
possibilities offered by
digital media, Signature
practices sending out
corporate profiles in CD
or online versions, only printing hard copies when
really necessary.
The use of both sides of the paper is encouraged
with the use of duplex printers and recycled paper
trays. Lastly, all used papers are collected and sent
for recycling!

The strengths of Signature lie not only in our technology
and products, but also in our employees, whose health
and well-being are the basis for their commitment
and productivity. Well-trained, motivated employees
who are focused on the end results make an important
contribution to the achievement of our goals and
ultimately the success of the whole organisation.

WORK ENVIRONMENT
To perpetuate these commitments from our
employees, Signature is committed to promoting a
conducive work environment through activities that
benefit the employees through daily activities. These
include but are not limited to creating a positive
learning environment that promotes employee training
and development, better work life balance, and better
working conditions in terms of employee meals and
safety and health aspects.
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Corporate Responsibility (cont’d)

TRAINING
At Signature, we train our own kitchen specialists
– ultimately our qualified employees are our most
important resource.
We provide on-the-job training at our production area,
and a Kitchen Planner Certification programme for our
Kitchen Planners and sales personnel. There are two
levels of certification: Beginner and Advanced levels
which every Kitchen Planner and sales personnel must
obtain in order to arrive at the standards acceptable by
Signature.

SPORTS
Signature encourages an active and healthy lifestyle
through participation in sports. In the past year, we
have encouraged employee volunteerism; we have
sponsored staff who are interested in participating
in Charity Runs where the proceeds have benefited
organisations such as the National Cancer Society
of Malaysia, the Malaysia Heart Foundation, and
participation in the Siemens Run 2011, held in line with
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the direction to become one of the nation’s greenest
run: the proceeds were dedicated to efforts in building
a smart village in Malaysia.

SAFETY AND HEALTH
With a safety and health officer responsible for the
safety procedures, we are constantly improving safety
at our workplace via regular briefings and training
sessions eg. fire drills and forklift trainings. Through
our 5S practices, process and procedures are in place
for mandatory and prohibition signs in work areas,
instructions for machines, tasks and handling of
hazardous materials, and personal provisions such as
the use of protective equipment.

COMMUNITY
Signature maintains a sustainable effort in Community
Investment (CI) towards the communities surrounding
us. Amongst others, Signature participates in
sponsorship of education programmes for deserving
candidates, the underprivileged and those in need of
financial support and access to education.
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PARTNERSHIP IN PROVIDING EDUCATION
OPPORTUNITIEs
Signature participated as a sponsor in the fundraising
dinner 2011 which was held to raise funds for the
Sunrise Education Foundation with the objectives
of providing financial assistance to financially needy
members of the society for primary, secondary as
well as tertiary education. The foundation also grants
scholarships to deserving individuals with outstanding
academic performance in pursuit of tertiary education
locally or overseas.
Underpinning this philosophy is Signature’s commitment
to educational excellence at all levels.
PROMOTING EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE
In our aim to promote educational excellence, Signature
hosted 27 Executive MBA students from the University
of Wisconsin Madison School of Business Executive
MBA program in March 2011. The objective of the
international study tour was to help the students better
understand what they have learned in the program,
as well as put it into context in the global business
arena; and to understand how business operations in
this particular country would fit our company’s global
strategy.

COMMUNITY SERVICES
As part of our community services this year, we have
supported a project by the Adventist Community
Services in its global mission for the community
development by being a sponsor for the “NEWSTART
CHARITY BAZAAR”, a fund raising project jointly
organized by Adventist Lay Services and Industry (ASI)
and Feruni Ceramiche Sdn Bhd., with the aim of raising
funds for the needy, the sick, and the disabled.
Understanding the plight of the needy in Penang and
Kuala Lumpur, Signature contributed towards the
Fund Raising Charity Concert: ‘Symphony of Hearts II’
organised by Harta Intan Construction in partnership
with Penang CARE and World Vision Malaysia; held for
the same cause.
Through Rotary’s District D3300 in Malaysia we
have managed to contribute to those in dire need
for the supply of drinking water for the prefecture of
Fukushima during the recent earthquake and tsunami
in Japan.
The above provides you with an insight into the steps
we are taking in relation to the subject of sustainability.
We will continue to operate in a sustainable manner –
making it a long term Signature value.
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CORPORATE EVENTS (FYE 2011) (cont’d)

July 2010
Kota Damansara Showroom, Petaling Jaya
New Showroom Launch & Annual Durian Fest
Signature International Berhad celebrated the launch of the new brand
identity in March 2010 with a brand new showroom identity at our
headquarters in Kota Damansara. Our 10,000 sq. ft. flagship showcase
now features a complete revamp of our Signature environmental grids
with new kitchen designs aligned to our new themes, Sleek Linear,
Contemporary Charm, Simply Natural and Rustic Country.
To reward our partners and customers, we invited them to experience our
new showroom in conjunction with our annual Durian Fest, where they
could feast on different varieties of durians from one of the most popular
durian farms in Raub, Pahang.
Sunway Pyramid Convention Centre
5th Annual Signature Staff Convention
This year’s annual staff convention was themed “Back to Basics” and
aimed to align organisational directions, bring together all staff from
our nationwide operations, announce the Group’s future plans, and
review sales achievements on a divisional basis. The highly-motivational
convention gave all areas of the Group an opportunity to network, share
information and realign business objectives.

AUGUST 2010
Sabah Trade Centre, Likas, Kota Kinabalu, Sabah
PropEx 2010
SHAREDA (Sabah Housing and Real Estate Developers Association) brings together developers, pooling their
expertise and resources to ensure that the industry takes up and plays its role as a key mover of the economy.
Through the years, SHAREDA members have influenced numerous state government committees and shaped
many government policies in real estate and housing development.
Signature’s participation in PropEx, an initiative of SHAREDA, served to strengthen our reputation in the East
Malaysian market as a national leader in the kitchen and home systems solutions industry.
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SEPTEMBER 2010
Kota Damansara Showroom
SignatureKitchen presents a session with Chef Ryan Khang
Signature hosted a fun yet educational class for our customers that
highlighted the functionality of Ariston ovens. The attendees were treated
to culinary perfection by professional chef Ryan Khang, who is also the
chief editor of My Nourishment magazine and research chef of The
Cooking House. Chef Ryan’s whipped up three oven-based recipes that the
audience could easily learn to do in their newly invited kitchens.

OCTOBER 2010
1Borneo, Kota Kinabalu, Sabah
Sabah International Expo (SIE2010)
The four-day-long Sabah International Expo 2010 (SIE2010) was held at 1Borneo, the largest hypermall in Sabah,
and showcased offerings from various industries including manufacturing, agriculture, services, automotive, and
property. As a player in the latter, Signature’s presence there presented an opportunity to extend our business
network and to provide updates on key issues in the East Malaysian market.
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CORPORATE EVENTS (FYE 2011) (cont’d)

November 2010
Dubai World Trade Centre
INDEX Interior Design Show 2010
INDEX is an international trade show themed “Where Inspiration Thrives” – a message aligned with the innovation
and creativity embodied by Signature’s product and service offerings. Last year represented our second participation
in this Middle East exhibition, and served to provide brand exposure and networking opportunities with developers
and industry specialists. As a result, the Group obtained promising new business leads and property development
exposure.
Orchard Road, Singapore (AFC Studio)
An Exclusive Culinary Experience
with Anna Olson
SignatureKitchen is the Official Kitchen
Partner of the Asian Food Channel (AFC)
in a strategic partnership through the AFC
Studio in Orchard Central, Singapore. The
AFC Studio aims to create a platform to
share culinary experiences among fans
of good cuisine. An exclusive event was
held for Signature clients and customers to experience first-hand a live culinary session hosted by Anna Olson, a
professional trained pastry chef and TV personality on the “Fresh” and “Sugar” TV series.
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December 2010
Sime Darby Convention Centre
Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Signature International Group hosted its 4th Annual
General Meeting at the Sime Darby Convention Centre,
where we were proud to report on our progress and growth
of Signature as a dynamic and progressive listed entity.
This also gave our shareholders to learn more about the
Group’s directions after Signature’s brand transformation,
as well as reports on recent achievements.

January 2011
Shah Alam Convention Centre
Best Kitchen Showroom Award - Anugerah Prestij Idea Dekorasi Impiana 2010/11
Signature was invited to the Anugerah Prestij Idea Dekorasi Impiana 2010/11 to receive the Best Kitchen Showroom
award for the SignatureKitchen Kota Damansara flagship showroom. Organised by the Karangkraf Group, the
awards aim to highlight achievements and the creativity of brands that has inspired the readers of karangkraf
publications.
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CORPORATE EVENTS (FYE 2011) (cont’d)

March, 2011
Kota Damansara Showroom
Executive MBA Business Study Group Visit from University of
Wisconsin, Madison School of Business
A group of 27 Executive MBA scholars from the University of Wisconsin, had a oneday business study and tour of Signature International Berhad’s group operations and
manufacturing facilities in Kota Damansara. The visit provided a great opportunity to
introduce the Group to potential US business opportunities through networking and a
sharing session of our business opportunities and strategies.

April 2011
Jounieh, Lebanon
Launch of SignatureKitchen
Lebanon
SignatureKitchen proudly opened
our doors in Jounieh, Lebanon in
April, marking our official presence
in the kitchen systems retail market
there. The SignatureKitchen brand will be boosted by the reputation built up
by previous project-based penetration in the country.
KL Hilton Hotel
OSK-DMG Asean Top Small Cap Day 2011
Signature International Berhad was identified by OSK Research, an expert in a wide spectrum of financial, advisory
and investment services, as one of the top 10 Malaysian small market capitalisation (small-cap) companies. The
Group was invited to celebrate this recognition by investors in an event showcasing good small-cap companies that
were under-researched and relatively new to the investment community.
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April 2011
SMX Convention Centre, Pasay City, Philippines
37th United Architects of the Philippines National Convention and Exhibition 2011 (CONEX
2011)
CONEX 2011 was a convention and exhibition that also celebrated the 37th anniversary of United Architects of
the Philippines. This annual event brings thousands of Filipino architects together for days to share educational
programmes, explore the latest research, search for business opportunities and renew networks. As a participant,
SignatureKitchen sought avenues to create awareness in this thriving property market in hopes of yielding future
collaborations.
Participation in Local Exhibitions
Signature International Berhad showcases the Group’s innovations in kitchen systems and home solutions through
extensive marketing outreach and personal touchpoints. In the past financial year, the marketing opportunities
that Signature invested in included:
6 - 8 August 2010
Persada International Covention
Centre, Johor Bahru
Homedec JB 2010

8 - 10 April 2011
Persada Johor
HomeFair’11 Exhibition

23 - 26 September 2010
Kuala Lumpur Convention Center
Homedec KL 2010

15 - 17 April 2011
Penang International Sports Arena
(PISA), Penang, Malaysia
Homedec Penang ‘11

5 - 7 November 2010
Penang International Sports Arena
(PISA)
Homedec Penang 2010

21 - 24 April 2011
Sabah Trade Centre, Likas, Kota
Kinabalu, Sabah
IPEX & Ideal Home Show
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is fully committed to promote and achieve the standard of corporate governance
and to ensure that the principles and best practices of corporate governance as detailed in the Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance (“the Code”) are practised and adopted throughout the Group.
The Board evaluates the Group's corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to adopt and implement
the principles and best practices as recommended by the Code as a fundamental part of discharging its duties and
responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders’ value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
results in creation of long term value and benefits for all shareholders.

SECTION 1: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board takes full responsibilities for the performance of the Group and guides the Group towards achieving
its short and long term objectives, setting corporate strategies for growth and new business development while
providing advice and direction to the Management to enable the Group to achieve its corporate goals and objectives.

Composition of the Board and Board Balance
The Board members are made up of professional from diverse disciplines, tapping their respective qualifications
and experiences in business, commercial, and financial aspects. Together, they bring a wide range of experience
and expertise which are vital towards the effective discharge of the Board's responsibilities for the successful
direction and growth of the Group. Profiles of each Director is presented on pages 4 to 7 of this Annual Report.
The Board currently consists of seven (7) members, comprising two (2) Executive Directors and five (5) NonExecutive Directors. Amongst the Non-Executive Directors, three (3) are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The present composition of the board members fairly reflects the investment of the shareholders and is in
accordance with Paragraph 15.02(1) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market
Listing Requirements, which requires that at least two (2) or one-third (1/3) of the Board members, whichever is
the higher, to be Independent Directors.
The Independent Directors are independent of management and free from any form of business and shareholder
or family relationship that could interfere with the exercise of his independent judgment or the ability to act in the
best interests of the company. With the presence of the independent non-executive directors constituting almost
half of the board size in the Company, the Board ensures that the broader views and objectivity are brought into the
Board’s deliberation and decision making processes.
The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are separated in order to ensure a balance of power and
authority. The Chairman is responsible to ensure that the Board functions properly with good corporate governance
practices and procedures, whist the Managing Director is responsible for the day-to-day operations and business
activities of the Group. Similar with the previous year, the Board did not name a Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director. Accordingly, the Board encourages shareholders to convey their concerns if any to any of the Board
members. The Company has not received any notice of matters of concern from shareholders since its listing.
All the Directors have given their undertaking to comply with the Bursa Securities Main Market Listing Requirements
and the Independent Directors have confirmed their independence in writing.
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Appointments to the Board
The Nomination Committee is established and maintained to ensure that there is a formal and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors to the Board and for the performance appraisal of directors. The
current members of the Committee are made up of fully non-executive directors with majority being independent
non-executive directors. The composition of the Nomination Committee is as follows:
Name

Designation

Directorship

Dato’ Anuar bin Othman
Yap Khong
Dr. Lim Yin Chow

Chairman
Member
Member

Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Independent Non-Executive Director
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

To consider, in making its recommendations, candidates for directorships proposed by the Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer and, within the bounds of practicability, by any other senior executive or any director or
shareholder;
To recommend to the Board, directors to fill the seats on Board Committees;
To assess annually the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Committees of the Board and the contribution
of each existing individual director and thereafter, report its findings to the Board; and
To review and identify the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including core competencies
which non-executive directors should bring to the Board and thereafter, recommend its findings to the Board.

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee conducted a meeting and this meeting was attended by all
the members of the Committee.

Re-Election of Directors
In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, all Directors including the Managing Director shall retire
from office at least once in every three (3) years, but shall be eligible for re-election. This provision is in line with
Paragraph 7.26(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities. Directors who are appointed by the
Board during the financial year are subject to re-election by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting following
their appointment.

Directors’ Training
The Board acknowledges that continuous education is vital for the Board members to gain insight and to keep
abreast of changes in the state of economy, technological advances in the core business, latest regulatory updates,
and management strategies. In compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements and the relevant Practice
Notes issued by Bursa Securities, all Directors have attended and successfully completed their Mandatory
Accreditation Programme within the stipulated time frame as prescribed by Bursa Securities.
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During the financial year ended 30 June 2011, all the Directors have attended the following trainings:
Name of Directors
Dato’ Anuar bin Othman

Title of Training
• GST Updates, Impact of Financial Reporting Standards on the
preparation of Financial Statement and Improving Corporate
Governance
Mr. Tan Kee Choong
• GST Updates, Impact of Financial Reporting Standards on the
preparation of Financial Statement and Improving Corporate
Governance
• Lean Manufacturing
• Management (PAEI) styles & how to restructure
• Key Performance Indicators (KPI) – Design & Implementation
• Effective global logistics training
Mr. Michael Chooi Yoey Sun • GST Updates, Impact of Financial Reporting Standards on the
preparation of Financial Statement and Improving Corporate
Governance
• Key Performance Indicators (KPI) – Design & Implementation
Mr. Wong Maw Chuan
• GST Updates, Impact of Financial Reporting Standards on the
preparation of Financial Statement and Improving Corporate
Governance
• Valuation Analysis and Influential Indicators Applications
• Optimising corporate tax planning strategies
• Applying Fair Values in FRSs
Mr. Yap Khong
• GST Updates, Impact of Financial Reporting Standards on the
preparation of Financial Statement and Improving Corporate
Governance
En. Nik Mohd Iskandar bin • GST Updates, Impact of Financial Reporting Standards on the
Nik Hassan
preparation of Financial Statement and Improving Corporate
Governance
Dr. Lim Yin Chow
• GST Updates, Impact of Financial Reporting Standards on the
preparation of Financial Statement and Improving Corporate
Governance

Date
25 May 2011

25 May 2011
15 Aug 2010
20 Nov 2010
14 Apr 2011
16 Apr 2011
25 May 2011
14 Apr 2011
25 May 2011
29 Nov 2010
13 Dec 2010
20 Dec 2010
25 May 2011

25 May 2011

25 May 2011

Supply of Information
The Board has a formal schedule of matters for decision-making to ensure that the direction and control of the
Group is firmly in its hands.
Prior to each Board meeting, a full agenda together with relevant reports and comprehensive Board papers would
be distributed to all Directors in a timely basis to enable the Directors to consider the matters to be deliberated and
where necessary, obtain further information.
Proceedings of Board meetings are duly recorded and signed by the Chairman of the meeting.
Every Director has full and timely access to all Group information, records, documents and property to enable them
in discharging their duties and responsibilities effectively. The Directors, whether collectively or individually, may
seek independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company's expense, if required.
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Board Meetings
The Board meets on a quarterly basis with additional meetings held whenever necessary. There were six (6) Board
meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2011 and the details of attendance are as follows:Meetings attended by the Directors /
Total Number of Meeting held during the
financial year ended 30 June 2011

% of Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr. Tan Kee Choong
Mr. Michael Chooi Yoey Sun

6/6
5/6

100%
83.3%

Non-Executive Directors
Dato’ Anuar bin Othman
Mr. Wong Maw Chuan
Mr. Yap Khong
En. Nik Mohd Iskandar bin Nik Hassan
Dr. Lim Yin Chow

5/6
6/6
6/6
3/6
6/6

83.3%
100%
100%
50%
100%

Directors

Board Committees
The Board has established the following Committees to assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities
effectively. These Committees operate under defined Terms of Reference:
•
•
•

Audit Committee
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of each Board Committee are set out in the Board Charter and have been approved by the
Board. These Committees have the authority to examine any particular issues and report to the Board with their
recommendations. However, the ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all matters lies with the Board.

Audit Committee
The report of the Audit Committee is set out on pages 46 to 50 of this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee
The details of the Nomination Committee are mentioned above on page 37 of this Statement.

Remuneration Committee
The details of the Remuneration Committee are explained below on page 40 of this Statement.
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SECTION 2: DIRECTOR'S REMUNERATION
(a) Remuneration Procedure
The principles of remuneration of directors is formulated to ensure director’s remunerations are competitive,
realistic and aligned with the performance and calibre of individual directors. Principally, the aim of the
remuneration policy is to attract, motivate and retain Directors with the relevant experience, expertise and
quality needed to assist in managing the Group effectively.
For Executive Directors, the remuneration packages link rewards to corporate and individual performance
whilst for the Non-Executive Directors, the level of remuneration is linked to their experience and level of
responsibilities undertaken.
The level of remuneration for the Executive Directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee after
giving due consideration to the compensation levels for comparable positions among other similar Malaysian
public listed companies. The determination of the remuneration package of Non-Executive Directors,
including Non-Executive Chairman should be a matter for the Board as a whole. The individuals concerned
should abstain from discussing their own remuneration.
Members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-:
i.
ii.
iii.

Dato’ Anuar bin Othman (Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Chairman)
Mr. Yap Khong (Member/Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Michael Chooi Yoey Sun (Member/Executive Director )

The Remuneration Committee’s primary responsibilities include establishing, reviewing and recommending
to the Board the remuneration packages of each individual Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for recommending the remuneration for the senior
management and that the remuneration should reflect the responsibility and commitment that goes with it.
During the financial year, the Remuneration Committee had conducted a meeting to review the remunerations
of the Executive Directors and line management.

(b) Remuneration Package
The number of Directors whose remuneration fall into the following bands are as follows:-

40

Range of Remuneration

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Below RM50,000
RM400,000 to RM600,000

2

5
-
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The aggregate remuneration paid to all Directors of the Company are further categorised into the following
components:
Executive Directors
(RM’000)

Non-Executive Directors
(RM’000)

840
70
109
1
1,020

186
186

Directors' fees*
Emoluments
Bonus
EPF
SOCSO
Total
* The directors’ fees paid are related to financial year 2010.

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM, the Board proposed Directors’ fees of RM186,000
for Non-Executive Directors payable for financial year 2011.
The Board views that the transparency in respect of the Directors’ remuneration has been reasonably dealt
with by the ‘band disclosure’ presented in the above. Therefore, the detailed remuneration of each director is
excluded.

SECTION 3: SHAREHOLDERS
Dialogue between Company and Investors
The Board maintains an effective communication policy that enables both the Board and the Management to
communicate effectively with its shareholders, stakeholders and the public. The policy effectively interprets the
operations of the Group to the shareholders and accommodates feedback from shareholders, which are factored
into the Group’s business decision.
The Board communicates information on the operations, activities and performance of the Group to the shareholders,
stakeholders and the public through the following:i.

the Annual Report, which contains the financial and operational review of the Group’s business, corporate
information, financial statements, and information on Audit Committee and Board of Directors;

ii.

various announcements made to the Bursa Securities, which include announcements on quarterly results to
provide shareholders with an overview of the Company’s performance and operations;

iii.

the Company website at http://www.signaturekitchen.com.my/ is continuously updated to provide easy access
to corporate information pertaining to the Company and its activities ;

iv.

meetings with research analysts and fund managers to give them a better understanding of the Company’s
performance, corporate strategy and other matters affecting shareholders’ interests; and

v.

participation in surveys and research conducted by professional organisations as and when such requests
arise.
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The Annual General Meeting
The Board regards the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) as the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders and
aims to ensure that the AGM provides an important opportunity for effective communication with, and constructive
feedback from the Company’s shareholder. Notice of the AGM and Annual Reports are sent to shareholders twenty
one (21) days prior to the meeting.
At each AGM, the Board presents the progress and performance of the Group’s business and encourages attendance
and participation of shareholders during question and answer sessions. The Chairman and the Board will respond
to all questions raised by the shareholders during the AGM.

SECTION 4: ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting
The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of the Group's financial performance
and future prospects through the quarterly announcement of results to the Bursa Securities as well as the
Chairman's statement, review of operations and annual financial statements in the Annual Report. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in ensuring accuracy and adequacy of information by overseeing and reviewing the
financial statements and quarterly announcements prior to the submission to Bursa Securities.
The Directors are responsible to ensure that the annual financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the
applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and Companies Act, 1965. A Statement by the Directors of
their responsibilities in preparing the financial statements is set out separately on page 54 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control and Risk Management
The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the internal control system of the Group, covering not only
financial controls but also controls relating to operations, compliance and risk management. Information of the
Group's internal control and risk management is presented in the Statement of Internal Control set out on pages
51 to 52 of this Annual Report.

Relationship with Auditors
The Board has established a transparent and professional relationship with the Group’s Auditors, both internal and
external. Whenever the need arises, the Auditors would highlight to the Audit Committee and the Board from time
to time on matters that require the Board's attention.

Compliance with the Best Practices
Except for the non-disclosure of individual director’s remunerations, the Board believes that all material aspects of
the best practices set out in Part 2 of the Code have been complied with during the financial year.
This Corporate Governance Statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 27 October
2011.
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1.

2.
3.
4.

Utilisation of Proceeds Raised from Corporate Proposals

The Company did not undertake any corporate proposal to raise proceeds during the financial year ended 30
June 2011.

Share Buy-Back

There were no share buy-backs by the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities

There were no options, warrants or convertible securities issued by the Company since incorporation.

American Depository Receipt (ADR)/Global Depository Receipt (GDR)

The Company did not sponsor any ADR/GDR Programme during the financial year.

5.	Sanctions and/or Penalties Imposed on the Listed Issuer and its Subsidiaries, Directors or
Management by the Relevant Regulatory Bodies
There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or
management by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Non-Audit Fees

The non-audit fees payable to the External Auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath by the Group during the financial
year under review are as follows:i.
Review of The Statement of Internal Control which amounted to RM5,000; and
ii.
Review of Performa Statement of Financial Position pursuant to the adoption of FRS 139 (2010) Financial
Instruments which amounted to RM28,000.

Variation in Results

There were no variations of 10% or more between the audited results of the Group for the financial year ended
30 June 2011 and the unaudited results announced on 26 August 2011.

Profit Forecast/Profit Guarantee

The Company did not provide any profit forecast / guarantee in any public documents during the financial year
ended 30 June 2011.

Material Contracts with Related Parties

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving directors’ and
major shareholders’ interest which were still subsisting as at the end of the financial year under review or
which were entered into since the end of the previous financial year except as disclosed in note 40 of page 110
of the Financial Statements.

10. Revaluation Policy of Landed Properties

The revaluation policy for landed properties is detailed in Note 6 – Property, Plant and Equipment and Note
8 – Investment Properties of pages 92 and 96 of the Financial Statements.
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11. Recurrent Related Parties Transactions
At the Annual General Meeting held on 17 December 2010, the Company had obtained a shareholders’
mandate to allow the Group to enter into recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature
as disclosed in the Circular to Shareholders dated 22 November 2010.
In accordance with Practice Note 12 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the details
of recurrent related party transactions conducted during the financial year ended 30 June 2011 pursuant to
the shareholders’ mandate are disclosed as follows:

44

Transacting
company
within the
Signature
Group

Related
transacting
parties

SCSB

DCSB

Nik Mohd Iskandar bin Nik Hassan
· the Director and shareholder of
Signature
· the Managing Director and Major
Shareholder of DCSB

Sales of kitchen
RM50,168
and wardrobe
systems by SCSB to
DCSB

SCSB

HBSB

Nik Noraida binti Nik Hassan
· the Director and Major
Shareholder of HBSB
· the sister of Nik Mohd Iskandar
bin Nik Hassan
Nik Mansor bin Nik Hassan
· the Director of HBSB
· the brother of Nik Mohd Iskandar
bin Nik Hassan
Zaini bin Yuhyi
· the spouse of Nik Noraida binti
Nik Hassan
· the brother-in-law of Nik Mohd
Iskandar bin Nik Hassan and Nik
Mansor bin Nik Hassan

Sales of kitchen
RM189,508
and wardrobe
systems by SCSB to
HBSB

SCSB

DCSB

Nik Mohd Iskandar bin Nik Hassan
· the Director and shareholder of
Signature
· the Managing Director and Major
Shareholder of DCSB

Provision of
bankers guarantee
by SCSB to DCSB

Nature of
transactions

Nature of relationship
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transacted (from
18.11.2010 to
30.06.2011)

Nil

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

11. Recurrent Related Parties Transactions (Cont’d)
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 15 December 2011, the Company intends to seek its
shareholders’ approval for the proposed shareholders’ ratification for recurrent related party transactions of
a revenue or trading nature as set out below:Transacting
company
within the
Signature
Group

Related
transacting
parties

SCSB

HSB

Nature of
transactions

Nature of relationship
Dr. Lim Yin Chow
· the Director and substantial
shareholder of Signature

Awarded interior
fit-out works
at HSC Medical
Centre

Actual amount
transacted (from
18.11.2010 to
30.06.2011)
RM1,790,000 ##

· the Director and indirect
shareholding interest in HSB
(HSB is wholly owned by HSC
Healthcare Sdn Bhd and Dr. Lim
has indirect shareholding interest
of 20.18% in HSC Healthcare Sdn
Bhd)
The details of the shareholders’ mandate to be sought are set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated
23 November 2011.
Notes:
1.

Signature Cabinet Sdn Bhd (“SCSB”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Signature International Berhad (“Signature”).
The principal activity of SCSB is design, marketing and distribution of kitchen systems, wardrobe systems and built-in
kitchen appliances.

2.

The principal activity of Duamas Consolidated Sdn Bhd (“DCSB”) is that of an interior fit-out contractor. SCSB and
DCSB had on 26 April 2007 entered into a product supply agreement whereby SCSB has been appointed as the sole and
exclusive supplier of DCSB.

3.

SCSB is the sole and exclusive supplier of DCSB (a company in which En. Nik Mohd Iskandar bin Nik Hassan is a
Managing Director and Major Shareholder), to supply kitchen systems, wardrobe systems and interior fit-out services to
all projects and contracts awarded to or secured by DCSB from government institutions, agencies or other corporations.
As part of the terms and conditions of the letters of award extended to SCSB by DCSB, SCSB is required to, on behalf of
DCSB, deposit with the property developer a performance bond in the form of a bankers guarantee for the sum equal to
5% to 10% of the total contract sum awarded by DCSB to SCSB. This bankers guarantee is essentially a form of financial
security given to the property developer to guarantee the performance and quality of works performed by SCSB.

4.

The principal activity of Heart Base Sdn Bhd (“HBSB”) is in the retail of kitchen and wardrobe systems. HBSB is the
appointed dealer for one of Signature’s retail outlet located at 36 & 38 Ground Floor, Jalan PJS 8/2, Sunway Mentari,
46100 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

5.

The principal activities of HSB Development Sdn Bhd (“HSB”) are investment holding, property development and
advertising and promotional campaign.

##

Transaction for the reported period amounting to RM1,790,000. The cumulative claims to HSB as at 30 June 2011 amounting
to RM6,213,000. The claims inclusive of 166 new requests from HSB to SCSB to modify and extend the scope of work of the
Contract. However, the final total consideration is still subject to finalisation and agreement with HSB.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The Board of Directors of Signature International Berhad is pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the
financial year ended 30 June 2011.

Composition of the Audit Committee
The present members of the Audit Committee of the Company are:
i.
ii.
iii.

Mr. Wong Maw Chuan / Independent Non-Executive Director (Chairman)
Dato' Anuar bin Othman / Independent Non-Executive Chairman (Member)
Mr. Yap Khong / Independent Non-Executive Director (Member)

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee
(a) Terms of Membership
The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors amongst its members and consist of at least
three (3) members, of whom all must be Non-Executive Directors with a majority of them being Independent
Directors. The Chairman, who shall be elected by the Audit Committee, must be an Independent Director.
The Committee shall include one member who is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA");
or if he is not a member of the MIA, he must have at least three (3) years' working experience and he must
have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the First Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or he
must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the First Schedule of the
Accountants Act 1967; or he must hold a Degree/Master/Doctorate in accounting or finance and have at least
3 years’ post qualification experience in accounting or finance; or he must have at least 7 years’ experience
being a Chief Financial Officer of a corporation or having the function of being primarily responsible for the
management of the financial affairs of a corporation or fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or
approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”)
In the event of any vacancy in the Audit Committee resulting in the non-compliance with the Main Market
Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Board shall appoint a new member within three (3) months.
No alternate Director of the Board shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.

(b) Meetings and Quorum of the Audit Committee
In order to form a quorum in respect of a meeting of the Audit Committee, the majority of the members present
must be Independent Directors. The Company Secretary shall act as secretary of the Audit Committee and
shall be responsible, in conjunction with the Chairman, for drawing up the agenda and circulating it prior to
each meeting.
The Audit Committee met five (5) times during the financial year ended 30 June 2011. The details of the
attendance of the meetings are disclosed under the heading 'Attendance of Audit Committee Meetings' on
page 49 of this Annual Report.
The Audit Committee may require the attendance of any management staff from the Finance/Accounts
Department or other departments deemed necessary together with a representative or representatives from
the external auditors and/or internal auditors.
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In all five (5) meetings, the Chief Financial Officer was present to report on the results of the Group as well as to
answer questions posed by the Audit Committee in relation to the results to be announced. During these Audit
Committee meetings, representatives from the internal auditors had also been present to provide updates
on the progress of internal audit work that have been conducted to date, and to also provide comments and
recommendations, where applicable to improve the risk management framework supporting the activities of
the Group.
In any event, should the external auditors request, the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall convene a
meeting of the committee to consider any matter the external auditors believe should be brought to the
attention of the Directors or shareholders.

(c)

Functions of the Audit Committee
The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:i.

to consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit fee and any questions of reappointment,
resignation or dismissal;

ii.

to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit, and
ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

iii.

to discuss with the external auditor on the evaluation of the system of internal controls and the assistance
given by the employees to the external auditors.

iv.

to review and report to the Board if there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the external
auditor is not suitable for reappointment.

v.

to review the quarterly and year-end financial statements of the Company and Group prior to the approval
of the Board, focusing particularly on:
•
changes in or implementation of major accounting policies and practices;
•
significant adjustments arising from the audit;
•
the going concern assumption; and
•
compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.

vi.

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audit, and any matter the auditors
may wish to discuss (in the absence of Management where necessary);

vii.

to review the external auditor’s management letter and management's response;

viii. to do the following in relation to the internal audit function
•
review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit
function, and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
•
review the internal audit programme and the results of the internal audit processes or investigation
undertaken and where necessary ensure that appropriate action is taken on the recommendations
of the internal audit function;
•
review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function;
•
approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the internal audit function; and
•
inform itself of resignations of internal audit staff members and provide the resigning staff member
an opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning.
ix.

to review any related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the
Company or the Group;
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x.

to consider and review the major findings of internal investigations and the management’s response;
and

xi.

to consider any other functions or duties as may be agreed by the Committees and the Board.

(d) Rights of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee has ensured that it shall, wherever necessary and reasonable for the performance of its
duties and in accordance with a procedure determined by the Board:i.

have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

ii.

have the resources which are required to perform its duties;

iii.

have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company and Group;

iv.

have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal
audit function or activity (if any);

v.

be able to obtain independent professional or other advice when needed; and

vi.

be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding the
attendance of other Directors and employees of the Group, whenever deemed necessary.

(e) Procedure of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee regulates its own procedures on:						
i.
the calling of meetings;

(f)

ii.

the notice to be given of such meetings;

iii.

the voting and proceedings of such meetings;

iv.

the keeping of minutes; and

v.

the custody, protection and inspection of such minutes.

Review of the Audit Committee
The Board of Directors shall ensure that the term of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each
of its members are being reviewed at least once in every three years to determine whether the Committee and
its members have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.
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Attendance of Audit Committee Meetings
The details of attendance of each Audit Committee member in the Audit Committee meetings held during the
financial year ended 30 June 2011 are as follows:-

Directors

Meeting attended by the Audit
Committee Members/Total Number of
Meeting held during the financial year
ended 30 June 2011

% of Attendance

5/5
4/5
5/5

100%
80%
100%

Mr. Wong Maw Chuan
Dato' Anuar bin Othman
Mr. Yap Khong

Summaries of Activities of the Audit Committee
During the financial year up to the date of this Report, the Audit Committee carried out the following activities in
discharging their duties and responsibilities:
i.

Control
•
evaluated the overall effectiveness of the system of internal control through the review of the results of
work performed by the internal and external auditors and discussions with key management.

ii.

Financial Results
•
reviewed the quarterly financial results and annual audited financial statements of the Group and Company
before recommending to the Board for release to Bursa Securities. The review focused primarily on:
a) major judgemental areas, significant and unusual events;
b) significant adjustments resulting from audit;
c) the going concern assumptions;
d) compliance with applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia; and
e) compliance with Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and other regulatory
requirements.

iii.

External Audit
•
reviewed with the external auditor, their audit plan for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 to ensure
that their scope of work adequately covers the activities of the Group;
•

reviewed the results and issues arising from their audit of the annual financial statements and their
resolution of such issues as highlighted in their report to the Committee; and

•

reviewed their performance and independence before recommending to the Board their reappointment
and remuneration.
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iv.

Internal Audit
•
reviewed with the internal auditor, their audit plan for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 ensuring
that principal risk areas were adequately identified and covered the plan;
•

reviewed the recommendations by internal audit, representations made and corrective actions taken by
the management in addressing and resolving issues as well as ensuring that all issues were adequately
addressed on a timely basis;

•

reviewed the competencies of the internal auditors to execute the plan, the audit programs used in the
execution of the internal audit work and results of their work; and

•

reviewed the adequacy of the terms of reference for the appointment of the new internal auditors.

Training
The training records of the members of the Audit Committee are shown in the disclosure of directors’ training on
page 38 of the Corporate Governance Statement.

Internal Audit Function
The internal audit function is essential in assisting the Audit Committee in reviewing the systems of internal control
maintained by the management.
The Group had established an internal audit function upon listing. This function is outsourced to an internal audit
services company and functionally, the lead internal auditor reports to the Audit Committee directly.
The Audit Committee reviews and approves the annual internal audit plan before the Internal Auditors carry
out their functions. All audit findings are reported to the Audit Committee and areas of improvement and audit
recommendations identified are communicated to the management for further action.
The cost incurred for the internal audit function in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2011 was RM66,680
(2010: RM84,000).
The Audit Committee Report is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 27 October 2011.
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
INTRODUCTION
Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements
requires the Board of listed companies to include in its annual report, “a statement about the state of internal
control of the listed issuer as a Group”. Towards this end, the Board is pleased to provide the following statement
which is made in accordance with the “Statement on Internal Control - Guidance for Directors of Public Listed
Companies” outlining the nature and scope of internal controls of the Group during the financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board acknowledges the importance of the system of internal control and recognises that it is their responsibility
to maintain a sound system of internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
In this respect the Board is responsible for identifying the principal business risks; ensuring the implementation
of appropriate systems to manage these risks; and monitoring and reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the
Group’s system of internal control and management information systems.
The Board believes that in order to achieve a sound system of internal control, it is imperative to provide a control
environment and framework that is conducive. Essentially, this would also require the Board, management and
employees to be aware of the Group's business objectives, the risks that could potentially impede the Group in
achieving these objectives and to manage these risks collectively.

RISK ASSESSMENT
The Group has an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks facing the organization.
Currently, the risk management function continues to be driven by all Executive Directors and assisted by the
management. This function is embedded and carried out as part of the Group’s operating and business management
processes.
During the financial year, the management with the assistance and facilitation of the Internal Auditors had
conducted a re-assessment of risk in consideration of the current business environment. In this exercise, the risk
management documentation incorporated the measurement of risks, the control and the management mitigating
action plans. The re-assessed risk result and report was presented to the Board and the Audit Committee for
review and deliberation. As a matter of course, the internal audit plan was formulated based on the criticality of
the risk identified.

INDEPENDENT REVIEWS
Independent reviews of system of internal control are important in order to provide reasonable assurance to
the Board that the system is effective. Currently, this review mechanism is overseeing by the Audit Committee.
The presence of an independent internal audit function supports this review mechanism and assists the Audit
Committee in conducting their review more effectively.
The Audit Committee also reviews the financial information and reports produced by the management. This
financial information and reports cover quarterly financial results, annual report and audited financial statements.
The Audit Committee in consultation with the management deliberates the integrity of the information and data
before recommending to the Board for presenting to the shareholders and public investors.
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)

ASSURANCE AND LIMITATION
The Board believes that the current management control, risk management framework and the review mechanism
provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness of the systems of internal control of the Group. However, due to
the inherent nature of any systems of internal control, no matter how well systems of internal control are designed,
implemented and monitored, it does not eliminate the possibility of human error, collusion or the deliberate
circumvention of control procedures. Therefore, these systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatements, frauds and losses. Nonetheless, the Board remains committed
towards operating a sound system of internal control and acknowledges that the system must continuously evolve
to support the Group.

REVIEW OF STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Internal Control for inclusion in this annual report for the
year ended 30 June 2011 and have reported to your Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that this Statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process your Board has adopted in
reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the systems of internal control of the Group.
The Statement of Internal Control is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 27 October 2011.
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Statement of Responsibility
by Directors

In respect of the preparation of the annual audited financial statements

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the annual audited financial statements of the Group and the
Company are drawn up in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.
The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the annual audited financial statements of the Group and the
Company are prepared with reasonable accuracy from the accounting records of the Group and the Company so as
to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Company as of 30 June 2011 and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the annual audited financial statements, the Directors have:
a.
b.
c.

applied the appropriate and relevant accounting policies on a consistent basis;
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
prepared the annual audited financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and the
Company to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding whilst the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature
of these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS
The Group
RM’000

The Company
RM’000

Profit after taxation for the financial year

6,966

3,089

Attributable to:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

6,697
269

3,089
-

6,966

3,089

			

DIVIDENDS
Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid a first and final single tier dividend of 4 sen per
ordinary share amounting to RM4,800,000 in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2010.
The directors recommend the payment of a first and final single tier dividend of 2 sen per ordinary share on the
120,000,000 shares as at the date of this report amounting to RM2,400,000 to be approved by the shareholders at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. This dividend will be accounted for as a liability in the period when it is
approved by the shareholders.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year are disclosed in the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
During the financial year,
(a)

there were no changes in the authorised share capital of the Company;

(b)

The Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM40,000,000 to RM60,000,000 by a bonus
issue of 40,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the ratio of 1 bonus share for every 2 existing
ordinary shares held. The bonus shares were issued by the capitalisation of approximately RM11,582,000 from
the share premium and RM8,418,000 from the retained profits. The new shares issued rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company, except that the new shares so issued will not be
entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions that may be declared, made or paid
where the entitlement date precedes the date of allotment of such new shares;

(c)

there were no issues of debentures by the Company.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares
in the Company.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable
steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance
for impairment losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and
that adequate allowance had been made for impairment losses on receivables.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the further writing
off of bad debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable
steps to ascertain that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary
course of business, including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company, have
been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed
to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render
adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading
or inappropriate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
The contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 43 to the financial statements. At the date of this report, there does
not exist:(a)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b)

any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when
they fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.
.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the opinion of
the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially
the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year.

DIRECTORS
The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:DATO' ANUAR BIN OTHMAN
TAN KEE CHOONG
CHOOI YOEY SUN
WONG MAW CHUAN
YAP KHONG
NIK MOHD ISKANDAR BIN NIK HASSAN
LIM YIN CHOW
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the
financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year are as follows:-

Number Of Ordinary Shares Of RM0.50 Each

Direct Interests
Tan Kee Choong
Chooi Yoey Sun
Nik Mohd Iskandar Bin Nik
Hassan
Indirect Interest
Lim Yin Chow

At
1.7.2010

Bought

Bonus Issue

Sold

At
30.6.2011

20,800,000
20,685,500

-

10,400,004
10,342,750

-

31,200,004
31,028,250

299,481

-

149,740

(449,100)

121

12,006,600

7,082,750

6,003,300

-

25,092,650

By virtue of their interests in shares in the Company, Tan Kee Choong, Chooi Yoey Sun and Lim Yin Chow are
deemed to have interests in shares in its subsidiaries to the extent of the Company’s interest, in accordance with
Section 6A of the Companies Act 1965.
The other directors holding office at the end of the financial year did not have any interests in shares in the Company
or its related corporations during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors
as shown in the financial statements, or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest except for any benefits which
may be deemed to arise from transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business with companies in which
certain directors have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements.
Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any arrangements
whose object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 47 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH A RESOLUTION OF THE DIRECTORS
DATED

Tan Kee Choong

Chooi Yoey Sun
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
We, Tan Kee Choong and Chooi Yoey Sun, being two of the directors of Signature International Berhad, state that,
in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 63 to 127 are drawn up in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2011 and of their results and cash flows for the financial
year ended on that date.
The supplementary information set out in Note 49, which is not part of the financial statements, is prepared in all
material respects, in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements,
as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH A RESOLUTION OF THE DIRECTORS
DATED

Tan Kee Choong

Chooi Yoey Sun

STATUTORY DECLARATION
I, Tan Kee Choong, I/C No. 620318-05-5595, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management
of Signature International Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages
63 to 127 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by
Tan Kee Choong, I/C No. 620318-05-5595,
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory
on this

Tan Kee Choong
Before me
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No : 754118 - K

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Signature International Berhad, which comprise the statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as
set out on pages 63 to 127.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as of 30 June 2011 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial
year then ended.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (cont’d)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No : 754118 - K

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:(a)

In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with
the provisions of the Act.

(b)

We have considered the financial statements and the auditors' reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have
not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 5 to the financial statements.

(c)

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the
Company's financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and
explanations required by us for those purposes.

(d)

The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any
adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

The supplementary information set out in Note 49 on page 127 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance") and the directive of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for
the content of this report.

Crowe Horwath
Firm No: AF 1018
Chartered Accountants

Lee Kok Wai
Approval No: 2760/06/12 (J)
Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 30 JUNE 2011

30.6.2011
RM’000

The Group
Restated
30.6.2010
RM’000

Restated
1.7.2009
RM’000

30.6.2011
RM’000

30.6.2010
RM’000

5

-

-

-

30,337

30,337

6

25,146

29,763

25,651

-

-

7
8
9
10
13

14,956
3,715

4,164
321
-

3,445
321
370
-

-

-

43,817

34,248

29,787

30,337

30,337

11

10,258

8,511

9,603

-

-

12
13

2,803
41,011

11,813
49,623

10,839
43,089

-

-

14

5,555

4,655

2,225

3

1

15

2,871
12,493

1,550
8,333

805
4,171

31,172
696
1,823

29,121
454
1,731

166
21,042

162
17,693

8,494
9,801

820

4,874

96,199

102,340

89,027

34,514

36,181

140,016

136,588

118,814

64,851

66,518

Note
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in subsidiaries
Property, plant and
equipment
Prepaid land lease
payments
Investment properties
Other investment
Goodwill on consolidation
Long-term receivables

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Amount owing by contract
customers
Trade receivables
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Amount owing by
subsidiaries
Tax refundable
Short-term investments
Fixed deposits with
licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

16
17

The Company

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

30.6.2011
RM’000

The Group
Restated
30.6.2010
RM’000

Restated
1.7.2009
RM’000

30.6.2011
RM’000

30.6.2010
RM’000

18
19
20
21
22

60,000
1,309
(28,567)
60,106

40,000
11,582
1,309
(28,567)
67,663

40,000
11,582
1,309
(28,567)
59,035

60,000
4,743

40,000
11,582
14,872

23

(281)

(35)

(88)

-

-

TOTAL EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

92,567

91,952

83,271

64,743

66,454

NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST

1,461

1,192

820

-

-

94,028

93,144

84,091

64,743

66,454

Note
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital
Share premium
Revaluation reserve
Merger deficit
Retained profits
Foreign currency
translation reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

The Company

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

30.6.2011
RM’000

The Group
Restated
30.6.2010
RM’000

Restated
1.7.2009
RM’000

30.6.2011
RM’000

30.6.2010
RM’000

456
9,887

1,090
2,909

558
3,397

-

-

10,343

3,999

3,955

-

-

12
26

15,161
12,242

7,250
15,472

4,752
13,663

-

-

27
28

6,729
269
1,244

14,703
613
402
1,005

9,126
2,025
1,202

108
-

64
-

35,645

39,445

30,768

108

64

TOTAL LIABILITIES

45,988

43,444

34,723

108

64

TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

140,016

136,588

118,814

64,851

66,518

Note
NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation
Long-term borrowings

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amount owing to contract
customers
Trade payables
Other payables and
accruals
Amount owing to a director
Provision for taxation
Short-term borrowings

24
25

29

The Company

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The Group
Note

2010
RM’000

32

116,117

138,363

6,955

19,799

COST OF SALES

(79,310)

(94,828)

-

-

GROSS PROFIT

36,807

43,535

6,955

19,799

OTHER INCOME

6,491

1,547

104

237

43,298

45,082

7,059

20,036

(4,915)

(4,198)

-

-

(16,859)

(15,118)

(2,372)

(1,397)

OTHER EXPENSES

(9,377)

(4,477)

(400)

(80)

FINANCE COSTS

(1,097)

(817)

-

(1)

REVENUE

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

33

11,050

20,472

4,287

18,558

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

34

(4,084)

(5,272)

(1,198)

(4,462)

6,966

15,200

3,089

14,096

(246)

53

-

-

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

6,720

15,253

3,089

14,096

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

6,697
269

15,028
172

3,089
-

14,096
-

6,966

15,200

3,089

14,096

6,451
269

15,081
172

3,089
-

14,096
-

6,720

15,253

3,089

14,096

5.6
N/A

12.5
N/A

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,
NET OF TAX
- Foreign currency translation

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

EARNINGS PER SHARE (SEN)
- basic
- diluted

35
35

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Attributable To Equity Holders Of The Company
Non-Distributable

Distributable
Exchange

Share
Note

Capital
RM’000

Share Revaluation Merger Translation
Premium
Reserve Deficit
Reserve
RM’000
RM’000 RM’000
RM’000

Attributable

Non-

Retained

To Owners Of Controlling
Profits The Company
Interests

RM’000

RM’000

Total
Equity

RM’000 RM’000

THE GROUP
Balance at 1.7.2009

40,000

11,582

1,309

(28,567)

(88)

59,035

83,271

820

84,091

Total comprehensive
income for the
financial year

-

-

-

-

53*

15,028

15,081

172

15,253

Issuance of shares
to non-controlling
interest of a
subsidiary

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

200

200

-

-

-

-

-

(6,400)

(6,400)

-

(6,400)

40,000

11,582

1,309

(28,567)

(35)

67,663

91,952

1,192

93,144

Dividend paid

36

Balance at 30.6.2010

Note

Share
Capital
RM’000

Attributable To Equity Holders Of The Company
Non-Distributable
Distributable
Exchange
Attributable
NonShare Revaluation Merger Translation
Retained To Owners Of Controlling
Total
Premium
Reserve Deficit
Reserve
Profits The Company
Interests Equity
RM’000
RM’000 RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000 RM’000

THE GROUP
Balance at
30.6.2010/1.7.2010
- as previously
reported
- effect of
adopting FRS
139

3a(v)

- as restated
Total comprehensive
income for the
financial year
Bonus issue
Dividend paid
Balance at 30.6.2011

36

40,000

11,582

1,309

(28,567)

(35)

67,663

91,952

1,192

93,144

-

-

-

-

-

(1,036)

(1,036)

-

(1,036)

40,000

11,582

1,309

(28,567)

(35)

66,627

90,916

1,192

92,108

-

-

-

-

(246)*

6,697

6,451

269

6,720

20,000

(11,582)

-

-

-

(8,418)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(4,800)

(4,800)

-

(4,800)

60,000

-

1,309

(28,567)

(281)

60,106

92,567

1,461

94,028

* - represents surplus/expenses not recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

Note

Share
Capital
RM’000

NonDistributable
Share
Premium
RM’000

Distributable
Retained
Profits
RM’000

Total
Equity
RM’000

40,000

11,582

7,176

58,758

-

-

(6,400)

(6,400)

-

-

14,096

14,096

40,000

11,582

14,872

66,454

-

-

(4,800)

(4,800)

20,000

(11,582)

(8,418)

-

-

-

3,089

3,089

60,000

-

4,743

64,743

The Company
Balance as at 1.7.2009
Dividend paid

36

Total comprehensive income for the
financial year
Balance at 30.6.2010/1.7.2010
Dividend paid

36

Bonus issue
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year
Balance at 30.6.2011
					

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The Group

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:Allowance for impairment losses on receivables
Inventories written down
Bad debts written off
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Deposit written off
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on other investment
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of investment properties
Plant and equipment written off
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Dividend income from short-term investments
Interest income
Fair value (gain)/loss on short-term investments
Fair value gain on investment properties
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of short-term investments
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange
Write-back of allowance for impairment losses
on receivables

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

11,050

20,472

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

4,287

18,558

8,264
474
176
2,024
96
321
550
409
(141)
(179)
(128)
(3,420)

2,590
1,541
370
357
49
131
(85)
(191)
74
(140)

400
(5,333)
(89)
(11)
(4)
-

(19,000)
(58)
(53)
80
-

(80)
101

21
(126)
541

-

(126)
-

(1,157)

(184)

-

-

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital
changes
Net decrease in amount owing by/to contract
customers
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables

18,360

25,420

(750)

(599)

16,921
(2,221)
(4,519)
(11,204)

1,524
1,096
(11,911)
7,386

(2)
44

12

CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATIONS
Interest paid
Income tax paid

17,337
(550)
(6,172)

23,515
(357)
(7,108)

(708)
(1,440)

(587)
(4,881)

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES CARRIED FORWARD

10,615

16,050

(2,148)

(5,468)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

2011
RM’000

The Group
2010
RM’000

10,615

16,050

(2,148)

(5,468)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
37
Purchase of short-term investments
Purchase of investment properties
Additional investment in subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of short-term investments
Interest received
Repayment from subsidiaries
Dividend received from short-term investments

(7,347)
(4,032)
(3)
2,400

(5,600)
(5,763)
(1,168)
540

(88)
-

(400)
-

281
179
141

159
1,627
191
85

11
2,882
89

1,627
53
7,919
58

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(8,381)

(9,929)

2,894

9,257

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares to noncontrolling interest
Drawdown of term loans
Repayment of term loans
Repayment of hire purchase obligations
(Repayment to)/Advances from a director
Dividend paid

8,043
(424)
(829)
(613)
(4,800)

200

-

-

(420)
(633)
640
(6,400)

(4,800)

(6,400)

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1,377

(6,613)

(4,800)

(6,400)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

3,611

(492)

(4,054)

(2,611)

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION

(258)

52

-

-

17,855

18,295

4,874

7,485

17,855

820

4,874

Note
NET CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BROUGHT FORWARD

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

36

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR
39
21,208
									
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is a public company limited by shares and is incorporated under the Companies Act 1965 in
Malaysia. The domicile of the Company is Malaysia. The registered office and principal place of business are
as follows:Registered office

:

Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower,
8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama,
47800 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

Principal place of business

:

Lot 24, Jalan Teknologi,
Taman Sains Selangor 1,
Kota Damansara, PJU5,
47810 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution
of the directors dated 27 October 2011.

2.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding whilst the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the
nature of these activities during the financial year.

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified to
include other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, and in
compliance with Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.
(a)

During the current financial year, the Group has adopted the following new accounting standards and
interpretations (including the consequential amendments):FRSs and IC Interpretations (including the Consequential Amendments)
FRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
FRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
FRS 4 Insurance Contracts
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
FRS 101 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
FRS 123 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
FRS 127 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(a)

FRSs and IC Interpretations (including the Consequential Amendments)
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Amendments to FRS 1 (Revised) and FRS 127 (Revised): Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate
Amendments to FRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
Amendments to FRS 2: Scope of FRS 2 and FRS 3 (Revised)
Amendments to FRS 5: Plan to Sell the Controlling Interest in a Subsidiary
Amendments to FRS 7, FRS 139 and IC Interpretation 9
Amendments to FRS 101 (Revised) and FRS 132: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to FRS 132: Classification of Rights Issues and the Transitional Provision in Relation to
Compound Instruments
Amendments to FRS 138: Consequential Amendments Arising from FRS 3 (Revised)
IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IC Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IC Interpretation 11: FRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IC Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IC Interpretation 14: FRS 119 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interation
IC Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IC Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
Amendments to IC Interpretation 9: Scope of IC Interpretation 9 and FRS 3 (Revised)
Annual Improvements to FRSs (2009)
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(a)

The adoption of the above accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential
amendments) did not have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements, other than the
following:(i)

FRS 3 (Revised) introduces significant changes to the accounting for business combinations, both
at the acquisition date and post acquisition, and requires greater use of fair values. In addition,
all transaction costs, other than share and debt issue costs, will be expensed as incurred. This
revised standard will be applied prospectively and therefore there will be no financial impact on the
financial statements of the Group for the current financial year but may impact the accounting for
future transactions or arrangements.

(ii)

The Group considers financial guarantee contracts entered into to be insurance arrangements
and accounts for them under FRS 4. In this respect, the Group treats the guarantee contract as a
contingent liability until such a time as it becomes probable that the Group will be required to make
a payment under the guarantee. The adoption of FRS 4 has no impact on the financial statements
of the Group.

(iii) FRS 7 requires additional disclosures about the financial instruments of the Group. Prior to 1 July
2010, information about financial instruments was disclosed in accordance with the requirements
of FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation. FRS 7 requires the disclosure of
qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments,
including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including
sensitivity analysis to market risk.
The Group has applied FRS 7 prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions.
Accordingly, the new disclosures have not been applied to the comparatives and are included
throughout the financial statements for the current financial year.
(iv)

FRS 101 (Revised) introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with all items of income
and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised income and
expense recognised directly in equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements.
The Group has elected to present this statement as one single statement.
The revised standard also separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of
changes in equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in
equity presented in the statement of comprehensive income as other comprehensive income.
In addition, a statement of financial position is required at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period following a change in accounting policy, the correction of an error or the classification of
items in the statement.
FRS 101 (Revised) also requires the Group to make new disclosures to enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. This
new disclosure is made in Note 46(b) to the financial statements.
Comparative information has been re-presented so that it is in conformity with the requirements
of this revised standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(a)

(v)	The adoption of FRS 139 (including the consequential amendments) has resulted in several changes
to accounting policies relating to recognition and measurements of financial instruments.
The financial impact to the financial statements is summarised as follows:The Group
At 1.7.2010
RM’000
Retained profits
Remeasurement of loan and receivables financial assets

(1,036)

Prior to 1 July 2010, trade receivables were recorded at cost. With the adoption of FRS 139, these
amounts are now recognised initially at their fair values, which are estimated by discounting the
expected cash flows using the current market interest rate of a loan with similar risk and tenure.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
All these financial impacts are recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or another appropriate reserve upon the adoption of FRS 139. Comparatives are not adjusted/
represented by virtue of the exemption given in this standard.
(vi)

FRS 127 (Revised) requires accounting for changes in ownership interests by the group in a
subsidiary, while maintaining control, to be recognised as an equity transaction. When the group
loses control of a subsidiary, any interest retained in the former subsidiary will be measured at fair
value with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The revised standard also requires all losses
attributable to the minority interest to be absorbed by the minority interest instead of by the parent.
The Group will apply the major changes of FRS 127 (Revised) prospectively and therefore there will
be no financial impact on the financial statements of the Group for the current financial year but
may impact the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

(vii) Amendments to FRS 1 and FRS 127 remove the definition of ‘cost method’ currently set out in FRS
127, and instead require an investor to recognise all dividends from subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities or associates as income in its separate financial statements. In addition, FRS 127 has
also been amended to deal with situations where a parent reorganises its group by establishing
a new entity as its new parent. Under this circumstance, the new parent shall measure the cost
of its investment in the original parent at the carrying amount of its share of the equity items
shown in the separate financial statements of the original parent at the reorganisation date. The
amendments will be applied prospectively and therefore there will be no financial impact on the
financial statements of the Company for the current financial year but may impact the accounting
for future transactions or arrangements.
(viii) IC Interpretation 10 prohibits the impairment losses recognised in an interim period on goodwill,
investments in equity instruments and financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent
reporting period.
(ix) The Group has adopted the amendments made to FRS 117 Leases pursuant to the Annual
Improvements to FRSs (2009). The Group has reassessed and determined that the leasehold land of
the Group is in substance a finance lease and has reclassified it as property, plant and equipment.
This change in accounting policy has been made retrospectively in accordance with the transitional
provisions of the amendments.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(b)

The Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standards and interpretations (including
the consequential amendments) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board
(MASB) but are not yet effective for the current financial year:FRSs and IC Interpretations (including the Consequential Amendments)

Effective date

FRS 124 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

1 January 2012

Amendments to FRS 1 (Revised): Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

1 January 2011

Amendments to FRS 1 (Revised): Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

1 January 2011

Amendments to FRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

1 January 2011

Amendments to FRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

1 January 2011

IC Interpretation 4 Determining Whether An Arrangement Contains a Lease

1 January 2011

IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

1 January 2012

IC Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

1 January 2011

IC Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

1 July 2011

Amendments to IC Interpretation 14: Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

1 July 2011

Annual Improvements to FRSs (2010)

1 January 2011

The above accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments) are not
relevant to the Company’s operations except as follows:Annual Improvements to FRSs (2010) contain amendments to 11 accounting standards that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purposes. These amendments are
expected to have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company upon their initial
application except for the classification of the liability component of convertible financial instruments as
non-current based on when cash settlement is required to be made, notwithstanding the fact that the
Company could be required by the counterparty to settle in shares at any time.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:(i)

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the property,
plant and equipment are based on commercial factors which could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions.
The Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant and equipment will be
insignificant. As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation
of the depreciable amount.
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be
revised.

(ii)

Income Taxes
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be
different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding
of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of
business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made.

(iii) Impairment of Non-financial Assets
When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-use
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a
suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows.
(iv) Classification Between Investment Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed
a criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out separately under
a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont’d)
(iv) Classification Between Investment Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties (Cont’d)
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment property.
(v)

Revaluation of Properties
Certain properties of the Group are reported at valuation which is based on valuations performed
by independent professional valuers.
The independent professional valuers have exercised judgement in determining discount rates,
estimates of future cash flows, capitalisation rate, terminal year value, market freehold rental
and other factors used in the valuation process. Also, judgement has been applied in estimating
prices for less readily observable external parameters. Other factors such as model assumptions,
market dislocations and unexpected correlations can also materially affect these estimates and the
resulting valuation estimates.

(vi) Impairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets
The Group reviews its available-for-sale financial assets at the end of each reporting period to
assess whether they are impaired. The Group also records impairment loss on available-for-sale
equity investments when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
their cost. The determination of what is “significant’ or “prolonged” requires judgement. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and
the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
(vii) Classification of Leasehold Land
The classification of leasehold land as a finance lease or an operating lease requires the use
of judgement in determining the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to its ownership
lie. Despite the fact that there will be no transfer of ownership by the end of the lease term and
that the lease term does not constitute the major part of the indefinite economic life of the land,
management considered that the present value of the minimum lease payments approximated to
the fair value of the land at the inception of the lease. Accordingly, management judged that the
Group has acquired substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the land
through a finance lease.
(viii) Contracts
Contracts accounting requires reliable estimation of the costs to complete the contract and reliable
estimation of the stage of completion.

(i)

Contract Revenue
Contract accounting requires that variation claims and incentive payments only be recognised
as contract revenue to the extent that it is probable that they will be accepted by the customers.
As the approval process often takes some time, a judgement is required to be made of its
probability and revenue recognised accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont’d)
(viii) Contracts (Cont’d)

(ii)

Contract Costs
Using experience gained on each particular contract and taking into account the expectations
of the time and materials required to complete the contract, management estimates the
profitability of the contract on an individual basis at any particular time.

(ix) Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables
An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
Management specifically reviews its loans and receivables financial assets and analyses historical
bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and
changes in the customer payment terms when making a judgment to evaluate the adequacy of the
allowance for impairment losses. Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and
timing of future cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. If the expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will
impact the carrying value of receivables.
(x)

Allowance for Inventories
Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories.
These reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result
in revisions to the valuation of inventories.

(xi) Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use
of accounting estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value measurement
were determined using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would
differ if the Group uses different valuation methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets
and liabilities would affect profit and/or equity.

(b) Basis of Consolidation
		
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June 2011.
A subsidiary is defined as a company in which the parent company has the power, directly or indirectly,
to exercise control over its financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the
effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.
Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of
accounting policies with those of the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(b) Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)
Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position,
separately from the Company’s shareholders’ equity, and are separately disclosed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for
as transactions with owners and are recognised directly in equity. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in
equity.
All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the parent.
Upon loss of control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between:(i)

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest in the former subsidiary; and

(ii)

the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the former
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former subsidiary are
accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits) in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any
investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under FRS 127.
Business combinations from 1 July 2010 onwards
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the acquisition method,
the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group at the acquisition date. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs, other than the costs to issue debt or equity securities, are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the noncontrolling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
date of acquisition. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(b) Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)
Business combinations before 1 July 2010
All subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method. At the date of acquisition, the fair values of
the subsidiaries’ net assets are determined and these values are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
Non-controlling interests are initially measured at their share of the fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition.
The Group has applied the FRS 3 (Revised) in accounting for business combinations from 1 July 2010
onwards. The change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively in accordance with the
transitional provisions provided by the standard.

(c)

Functional and Foreign Currencies
(i)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional currency.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(ii)

Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies on initial
recognition, using the exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are translated at the rates ruling as of that
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when
the values were determined. All exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Foreign Operations
Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to RM at the rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated
at exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. All exchange differences arising from
translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
translation reserve. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of foreign operations are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the
foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(d) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group has become
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument
classified as a liability, are reported as an expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial
instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity.
Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to
settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual
policy statement associated with each item.
(i)

Financial Assets
On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables financial assets, or availablefor-sale financial assets, as appropriate.
•

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when the
financial asset is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly reduce
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income from this
category of financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

•

Held-to-maturity Investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the management has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment loss, with revenue recognised on an effective
yield basis.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(d) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(i)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)
•

Loans and Receivables Financial Assets
Trade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables financial assets. Loans
and receivables financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment loss. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

•

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated in
this category or are not classified in any of the other categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured to their fair values
at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, with
the exception of impairment losses. On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from equity into profit or loss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(ii)

Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method other than those
categorised as fair value through profit or loss.
Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held for
trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.

(iii) Equity Instruments
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(e) Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and
are reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.
On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

(f)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation or
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
Properties are revalued periodically, at least once in every five years. Surpluses arising from the revaluation
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the revaluation reserve.
Deficits arising from the revaluation, to the extent that they are not supported by any previous revaluation
surpluses, are recognised in profit or loss.
		
Depreciation is calculated under the straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the
assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes
idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are:Buildings
Leasehold land
Plant and machinery, tools and factory equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings, renovation and signboards
Showroom and office equipment
Computers

Over the remaining lease period of 27 - 30 years
Over the lease period of 30 years
10%
20%
10%
10% - 20%
20% - 40%

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that the amounts, method and periods of depreciation are
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the items of the property, plant and equipment.
Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for commercial
use at the end of the reporting period. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and is transferred to
the relevant category of assets and depreciated accordingly when the assets are completed and ready
for commercial use.
Cost of capital work-in-progress includes direct cost, related expenditure and interest cost on borrowings
taken to finance the construction of acquisition of the assets to the date that the assets are completed
and put into use.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(f)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the initial estimate
of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located for which the Group
is obligated to incur when the asset is acquired, if applicable.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset is recognised
in profit or loss. The revaluation reserve included in equity is transferred directly to retained profits on
retirement or disposal of the asset.
In the previous financial year, leasehold land that normally had an indefinite economic life and title was
not expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the lease term was treated as an operating lease. The
payment made on entering into or acquiring leasehold land that was accounted for as an operating lease
represents prepaid lease payments.
During the financial year, the Group adopted the amendments made to FRS 117 Leases in relation to the
classification of lease of land. The Group’s leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease has been
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and measured as such retrospectively.

(g) Impairment
(i)

Impairment of Financial Assets
All financial assets (other than those categorised at fair value through profit or loss), are assessed
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. For
an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.
An impairment loss in respect of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables financial
assets is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit or loss
and is measured as the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation)
and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve.
In addition, the cumulative loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under fair value reserve, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised. In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to an impairment loss made is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(g) Impairment (Cont’d)
(ii)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The carrying values of assets, other than those to which FRS 136-Impairment of Assets does not
apply, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when there is an indication
that the assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of
the assets with their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the assets is the higher of
the assets' fair value less costs to sell and their value in use, which is measured by reference to
discounted future cash flow.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried at its
revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to
the extent of a previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.
In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is
treated as a reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying
amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless
the asset is carried at its revalued amount. A reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset
is credited to other comprehensive income. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the
same revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense in the statements of comprehensive
income, a reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as income in the statements of
comprehensive income.

(h) Investment Properties
Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both. Initially investment properties are measured at cost including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair values of investment properties are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
Investment properties are derecognised when they have either been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal.
On the derecognition of an investment property, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
An investment property under construction before 1 July 2010 was classified as property, plant and
equipment and measured at cost. Such property is stated at cost until construction or development is
completed, at which time it is remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain
or loss arising from remeasurement is recognised in profit or loss.
Following the amendment made to FRS 140, Investment Property, with effect from 1 July 2010, investment
property under construction is classified as investment property. Where the fair value of the investment
property under construction is not reliably determinable, the investment property under construction is
measured at cost until either its fair value become reliably determinable or construction is complete,
whichever is earlier.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(i)

Assets under Hire Purchase
Assets acquired under hire purchase are capitalised in the financial statements and are depreciated in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 4(f) above. Each hire purchase payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. Finance
charges are recognised in profit or loss over the period of the respective hire purchase agreements.

(j)

Revaluation Reserve
Surpluses arising from the revaluation of properties are credited to the revaluation reserve account.
Deficits arising from the revaluation, to the extent that they are not supported by any previous revaluation
surpluses, are charged to the profit or loss.
In the year of the disposal of the revalued asset, the attributable remaining revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve account to the retained profits.

(k) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-infirst-out basis and comprises the purchase price and incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Where necessary, due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow-moving items.

(l)

Amounts Owing By/To Contract Customers
The amounts owing by/to contract customers are stated at cost plus profits attributable to contracts
in progress less progress billings and allowance for foreseeable losses, if any. Cost includes direct
materials, labour and applicable overheads.

(m) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, deposits pledged
with financial institutions, bank overdrafts and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(n) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events, when
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the estimated expenditure required to
settle the obligation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(o) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs, directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their
intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during extended periods in which
active development is interrupted.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as expenses in the period in which they incurred.

(p) Income Taxes
Income tax for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year
and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise
from goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs or from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation
authority.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is included in the
resulting goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(q) Employee Benefits
(i)

Short-term Benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii)

Defined Contribution Plans
The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss in the period
to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further liability in
respect of the defined contribution plans.

(r)

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.
A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

(s) Related Parties
A party is related to an entity if:(i)

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:•
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);
•
has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; or
•
has joint control over the entity;
(ii) the party is an associate of the entity;
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the entity is a venturer;
(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent;
(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);
(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to
in (iv) or (v); or
(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the entity, or of any
entity that is a related party of the entity.
Close members of the family of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(t)

Operating Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by
the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment
and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

(u) Revenue and Other Income
(i)

Contracts
Revenue on contracts is recognised on the percentage of completion method unless the outcome of
the contract cannot be reliably determined, in which case revenue on contracts is only recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are recoverable. Foreseeable losses, if any, are provided
for in full as and when it can be reasonably ascertained that the contract will result in a loss.
The stage of completion is determined based on the proportion that the contract costs incurred for
work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

(ii)

Sale of Goods
Revenue is recognised upon delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance and where applicable,
net of returns and trade discounts.

(iii) Services
Revenue is recognised upon rendering of services and when the outcome of the transaction can
be estimated reliably. In the event the outcome of the transaction could not be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised to the extent of the expenses incurred that are recoverable.
(iv) Rental Income
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.
(v)

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on the effective yield on the investment.
Interest income on late payment is recognised on a receipt basis.

(vi) Dividend Income
Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend payment is
established.
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5.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
30,337

Unquoted shares, at cost
				

30,337

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:Country of
Effective Equity
Incorporation
Interest
2011
2010

Name of Company

Direct subsidiaries:Signature Cabinet Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Design, marketing and distribution of
kitchen systems, wardrobe systems and
built-in kitchen appliances.

Signature Aluminium Sdn.
Bhd.

Malaysia

60%

60%

Manufacture, supply, fabrication, and
installation of aluminium, glass and
aluminium related products for the retail
and project business.

Signature Obicorp Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Marketing and distribution of built-in
kitchen appliances and white goods.

Kubiq Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Selling, marketing and distributing of
cabinets in kitchen and bedroom,
knockdown furniture and furniture parts,
appliances and accessories.

Indirect subsidiaries:Signature Manufacturing
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Manufacturing of kitchen systems and
wardrobe systems.

Signature Kitchen Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Retailing of kitchen systems, wardrobe
systems and built-in kitchen appliances.

Signature Kitchen Industries
Sdn. Bhd. (In Members’
Voluntary Liquidation)

Malaysia

-

100%

In Members’ Voluntary Liquidation
pursuant to an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 29 April 2011.

Fabriano Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Investment holding.

The British
Virgin lslands

100%

100%

Investment holding.

Equal Strategy Pte. Ltd.
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5.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
Name of Company

Country of
Effective Equity
Incorporation
Interest
2011
2010

Indirect subsidiaries:Signature Kitchen (NZ)
Limited *

New Zealand

100%

100%

Retailing of kitchen systems, wardrobe
systems and built-in kitchen appliances.

Signature Global Marketing
Pte. Ltd. ^

The Republic
of Singapore

90%

90%

Marketing and distribution of kitchen
systems, wardrobe systems and built-in
kitchen appliances.

Signature Kitchens Global
L.L.C * #

United Arab
Emirates

-

49%

Trading of kitchen equipment and outfits.

Principal Activities

*

Not audited by Messrs. Crowe Horwath.

^

Audited by an affiliate of Messrs. Crowe Horwath.

#

During the financial year, the subsidiary’s business licence expired and no renewal has been made
as the subsidiary does not intend to continue its operations in UAE. Hence, the subsidairy has been
deregistered at the end of the reporting period. In the previous financial year, the Company considered
this investment as a subsidiary as the Company had significant influence over its financial and operating
policy decisions.
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*

6,045

4,031

23,718

-

895
-

-

1,665
3,091

1,262
99

6,045

12,675
-

29,763

4,031

1,262
99

895

1,665
3,091

12,675
6,045

7,774

6,316

95
39

372

461
470

21
-

(201)

-

(76)
-

-

(44)
(81)

-

(409)

-

(286)
-

(34)

(34)
(47)

(8)
-

(9,769)

(10,347)*

-

-

-

578
-

The transfers relate to assets transferred to buildings of approximately RM578,000 and investment properties of approximately RM9,769,000.

Net Book Value
Buildings
Leasehold land
Plant and
machinery,
tools and factory
equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture and
fittings,
renovation and
signboards
Showroom and
office equipment
Computers
Capital work-inprogress

The Group

As
Previously
As
Reported
Restated
At Effect Of
At
Written
1.7.2010 Frs 117 1.7.2010 Additions Disposals
Off Transfers
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
RM’000
RM’000 RM’000
RM’000

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(2,024)

-

(227)
(71)

(141)

(238)
(551)

(555)
(241)

12

-

2
-

6

1
1

2
-

25,146

-

770
67

1,098

1,811
2,883

12,713
5,804

Foreign
Depreciation
Exchange
At
Charge Differences 30.6.2011
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

6.

Net Book Value
Buildings
Leasehold land
Plant and machinery,
tools and factory
equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings,
renovation and
signboards
Showroom and office
equipment
Computers
Capital work-inprogress

The Group

6,285

-

6,285

13,036
-

1,243
3,161

531

1,268
127

-

19,366

As
Previously
Reported
At Effect Of
1.7.2009 FRS 117
RM’000 RM’000

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)

25,651

-

1,268
127

531

1,243
3,161

13,036
6,285

As
Restated
At
1.7.2009
RM’000

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

5,968

4,031

264
56

489

650
400

78
-

(180)

-

(65)
(6)

(26)

(22)
(21)

(40)
-

Additions Disposals
RM’000
RM’000

(131)

-

-

-

(131)

-

Written
Off
RM’000

(1,541)

-

(204)
(77)

(96)

(206)
(318)

(400)
(240)

(4)

-

(1)
(1)

(3)

-

1
-

Foreign
Depreciation
Exchange
Charge Differences
RM’000
RM’000

29,763

4,031

1,262
99

895

1,665
3,091

12,675
6,045

At
30.6.2010
RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
At
Cost
RM’000

At
Valuation
RM’000

Accumulated
Depreciation
RM’000

Net Book
Value
RM’000

7,360
7,216
2,675

7,106
-

(1,753)
(1,412)
(864)

12,713
5,804
1,811

4,418
1,488

-

(1,535)
(390)

2,883
1,098

2,156
527

-

(1,386)
(460)

770
67

25,840

7,106

(7,800)

25,146

6,770
7,216
2,310

7,106
-

(1,201)
(1,171)
(645)

12,675
6,045
1,665

4,250
1,176

-

(1,159)
(281)

3,091
895

2,615
531
4,031

-

(1,353)
(432)
-

1,262
99
4,031

28,899

7,106

(6,242)

29,763

THE GROUP
AT 30.6.2011
Buildings
Leasehold land
Plant and machinery, tools and factory
equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings, renovation and
signboards
Showroom and office equipment
Computers

AT 30.6.2010
Buildings
Leasehold land
Plant and machinery, tools and factory
equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings, renovation and
signboards
Showroom and office equipment
Computers
Capital work-in-progress

The total net book value of the motor vehicles of the Group acquired under hire purchase terms at the end of
the reporting period amounted to approximately RM2,066,000 (2010 - RM2,703,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group are the following assets pledged to financial institutions
as security for banking facilities granted to the Group:

Buildings
Leasehold land

30.6.2011
RM’000

30.6.2010
RM’000

5,869
3,001

6,121
3,132

8,870

9,253

The buildings of the Group were revalued in year 2007 based on professional appraisals by independent
valuers using the open market value basis. The deferred tax on the revaluation surplus has been accounted
for in the financial statements as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.
The net book value of the buildings of the Group at the end of the reporting period, had these assets been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, would have amounted to approximately RM5,075,000 (2010 RM5,296,000).

7.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Short leasehold land, at cost
- as previously reported
- effects of FRS 117
- as restated
Accumulated amortisation
- as previously reported
- effects of FRS 117

7,216
(7,216)

7,216
(7,216)

-

-

(1,412)
1,412

Accumulated amortisation:At 1 July
Amortisation for the financial year
At 30 June
				

(1,171)
1,171

-

-

(1,171)
(241)

(931)
(240)

(1,412)

(1,171)

The Company has adopted the amendments made to FRS 117-Leases during the financial year. The Company
has reassessed and determined that the leasehold land of the Company is in substance a finance lease
and has reclassified it as property, plant and equipment. This change in accounting policy has been made
retrospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions of the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

8.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
At 1 July
Addition during the financial year
Transfer from property, plant and equipment
Fair value adjustment
Disposal during the financial year

4,164
3
9,769
3,420
(2,400)

3,445
1,168
140
(589)

At 30 June

14,956

4,164

Investment properties comprise the following:Leasehold buildings:
- completed condominiums, at fair value
- condominiums under construction, at cost

12,844
2,112

4,164
-

14,956

4,164

Fair value adjustment relates to the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the investment
properties. The fair value is based on the prevailing market prices of the investment properties.

9.

OTHER INVESTMENT
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Unquoted shares outside Malaysia, at cost
Allowance for impairment loss

				

321
(321)

321
-

-

321

On 21 February 2007, the Group acquired a 32% equity interest in Signature Kitchen India Private Limited, a
company incorporated in India.
The Group does not consider this investment as an associate as the Group has no significant influence over
its financial and operating policy decisions.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

10. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
At 1 July
Impairment loss on goodwill

-

370
(370)

At 30 June

-

-

Goodwill on consolidation arose from the acquisition of Signature Kitchen (NZ) Limited in the previous financial
year.
Goodwill on consolidation was stated at cost and reviewed for impairment annually. In the previous financial
year, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the goodwill on consolidation, and determined that the
goodwill on consolidation was impaired.

11. INVENTORIES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
AT COST:Raw materials, parts and accessories
Work-in-progress
Goods-in-transit
Finished goods

AT NET REALISABLE VALUE:Finished goods
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3,998
682
127
4,976

2,880
430
442
4,759

9,783

8,511

475

-

10,258

8,511
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

12. AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) CONTRACT CUSTOMERS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Amount owing by:Contract costs incurred todate
Attributable profits

39,811
14,307

50,042
20,798

Progress billings

54,118
(51,315)

70,840
(59,027)

2,803

11,813

Amount owing to:Contract costs incurred todate
Attributable profits

114,422
49,251

71,794
31,698

Progress billings

163,673
(178,834)

103,492
(110,742)

(15,161)

(7,250)

			

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Trade receivables
Non-current

3,715

Current
Retention sum
Allowance for impairment losses

Allowance for impairment losses:At 1 July
Addition during the financial year
Write-off during the financial year
Write-back during the financial year
At 30 June
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-

40,754
11,198
51,952
(10,941)

43,180
10,527
53,707
(4,084)

41,011

49,623

(4,084)
(8,264)
250
1,157

(1,678)
(2,590)
184

(10,941)

(4,084)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)
The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 days. Other credit terms are assessed and approved
on a case-by-case basis.
Included in the trade receivables is an amount of approximately RM2,318,000 (2010 - RM9,952,000) owing
by companies in which a director of the Company and a close member of the family of the director have
substantial financial interests. The amount owing is subject to normal trade credit terms and is to be settled
in cash.

14. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Included in the other receivables, deposits and prepayments is an amount of approximately RM24,000 (2010 RM24,000) representing advances granted to a foreign affiliated company.
The amount owing is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The amount owing is to be settled
in cash.

15. AMOUNT OWING BY SUBSIDIARIES
Included in the amount owing by subsidiaries is a dividend receivable amounting to RM4,000,000 (2010 RM5,250,000).
The amount owing by the subsidiaries is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The amount owing is to be settled in cash.

16. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
The Group

Unit trust fund, quoted in Malaysia, at fair
value
Fair value gain/(loss)

Market value of unit trust fund at 30 June

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

12,370
123

8,407
(74)

1,819
4

1,811
(80)

12,493

8,333

1,823

1,731

12,493

8,333

1,823

1,731

The short term investments were previously stated at the lower of cost and market value, determined on
an aggregate basis. Upon adoption of FRS 139 during the financial year, these short-term investments are
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

17. FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS
Included in the fixed deposits was an amount of approximately RM166,000 (2010 - RM162,000) at the end of
the reporting period which has been pledged to a licensed bank as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group.
The effective interest rates of the fixed deposits ranged from 2.40% to 3.00% (2010 - 1.95% to 2.00%) per
annum at the end of the reporting period. The fixed deposits have a maturity period of 30 days (2010 - 30 days).

18. SHARE CAPITAL
		

The Company
2011
2010
2011
Number Of Shares
’000
’000
RM’000

2010
RM’000

ORDINARY SHARES OF RM0.50 EACH
AUTHORISED
ISSUED AND FULLY
At 1 July
Bonus issue
At 30 June

200,000

200,000

100,000

100,000

80,000
40,000

80,000
-

40,000
20,000

40,000
-

120,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

The Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM40,000,000 to RM60,000,000 by a bonus
issue of 40,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the ratio of 1 bonus share for every 2 existing
ordinary shares held. The bonus shares were issued by the capitalisation of approximately RM11,582,000 from
the share premium and RM8,418,000 from the retained profits. The new shares issued rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company, except that the new shares so issued will not be
entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions that may be declared, made or paid
where the entitlement date precedes the date of allotment of such new shares.

19. SHARE PREMIUM
In the previous financial year, the share premium was not distributable by way of cash dividends and may be
utilised in the manner set out in Section 60(3) of the Companies Act 1965.

20. REVALUATION RESERVE
The revaluation reserve represents the surplus arising from the revaluation of the short leasehold properties
and is not distributable by way of cash dividends.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

21. MERGER DEFICIT
The merger deficit was related to the subsidiaries which were consolidated under the merger method of
accounting.
The merger deficit arose from the difference between the carrying value of the investment and the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries upon consolidation using merger accounting principles.

22. RETAINED PROFITS
At the end of the reporting period, the Company will be able to distribute dividends out of its entire retained
profits under the single tier tax system.

23. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
The foreign currency translation reserve arose from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries and is not distributable by way of dividends.

24. DEFERRED TAXATION
The Group

At 1July
Recognised in the profit or loss (Note 34)
At 30 June
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2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

1,090
(634)

558
532

456

1,090
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (cont’d)
The components of the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are attributable to the following:The Group

Deferred tax liabilities:Accelerated capital allowances over depreciation
Revaluation of properties
Others

Deferred tax assets:Allowance for impairment losses on receivables
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange
Others

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

1,085
349
4

1,059
367
4

1,438

1,430

(847)
(125)
(10)

(205)
(125)
(10)

(982)

(340)

456

1,090

25. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
The Group

Hire purchase payables (Note 30)
Term loans (Note 31)

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

721
9,166

866
2,043

9,887

2,909

26. TRADE PAYABLES
The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days.

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
The Group

Deposits received from customers
Other payables and accruals

102

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

4,088
2,641

9,741
4,962

108

64

6,729

14,703

108

64
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

28. AMOUNT OWING TO A DIRECTOR
In the previous financial year, the amount owing was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The amount owing was denominated in United States Dollar and was settled in cash.

29. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
The Group

Hire purchase payables (Note 30)
Term loans (Note 31)

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

309
935

566
439

1,244

1,005

30. HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES
The Group
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

364
733
116

646
952
64

Future finance charges

1,213
(183)

1,662
(230)

Present value of hire purchase payables

1,030

1,432

Current (Note 29):
- not later than one year

309

566

Non-current (Note 25):
- later than one year but not later than five years
- later than five years

617
104

808
58

721

866

1,030

1,432

Minimum hire purchase payments:
- not later than one year
- later than one year but not later than five years
- later than five years

			

The hire purchase payables bore effective interest rates ranging from 4.26% to 9.00% (2010 - 4.26% to 9.00%)
per annum at the end of the reporting period.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

31. TERM LOANS
The Group

Current (Note 29):
- repayable within one year
Non-current (Note 25):
- repayable between one and two years
- repayable between two and five years
- repayable after five years

			

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

935

439

1,227
3,121
4,818

470
1,531
42

9,166

2,043

10,101

2,482

Details of the repayment terms are as follows:-

Term Loan

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Monthly
Instalment
RM
22,677
4,603
22,360
22,763
18,455
18,455
20,346

Number Of
Monthly
Instalment

Date Of
Commencement
Of Repayment

120
120
120
120
120
120
120

1 January 2005
1 January 2005
1 August 2005
1 July 2011
1 July 2011
1 July 2011
5 September 2011

The Group
Amount Outstanding
2011
RM

2010
RM

897,681
182,456
971,450
2,778,465
1,846,957
1,846,957
1,507,178

1,096,887
222,878
1,162,922
-

The term loans bore effective interest rates ranging from 4.8% to 7.4% (2010 - 6.85%) per annum at the end
of the reporting period.
The term loans are secured by:(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

a first legal charge over certain short leasehold land and buildings of a subsidiary;
a first legal charge over certain investment properties of a subsidiary;
a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
a joint and several guarantee of certain directors of the Company.

Included in the term loans of the Group at the end of the reporting period, is a term loan which is repayable
in 120 monthly instalments of RM4,956. At the end of the reporting period, the term loan has not been fully
drawndown. The repayment will commence from the full drawdown of the term loan amounting to RM500,000.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

32. REVENUE
The Group

Dividend income from subsidiaries
Sale of goods
Contract revenue
Management fee

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

51,448
64,669
-

48,650
89,713
-

5,333
1,622

19,000
799

116,117

138,363

6,955

19,799

33. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The Group

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

-

370

-

-

321

-

-

-

8,264

2,590

400

-

119

107

20

20

(1)
176
96

1
-

-

-

2,024
186
1,020

1,541
186
1,144

186
1,020

186
471

14

25

-

-

87
321
474

81
-

-

-

Profit before taxation is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):
Impairment loss on goodwill
Allowance impairment loss on other
investment
Allowance for impairment losses on
receivables
Audit fee:
- for the financial year
- (over)/underprovision in the previous
financial year
Bad debts written off
Deposit written off
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Directors’ fee
Directors’ non-fee emoluments
Direct operating expenses of investment
properties:
- revenue generating during the financial
year
- non-revenue generating during the
financial year
Impairment loss on other investment
Inventories written down
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

33. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (cont’d)
The Group

Interest expense:
- bankers’ acceptances
- bank guarantee
- bank overdraft
- hire purchase
- term loans
Loss on disposal of investment properties
Plant and equipment written off
Preliminary expenses
Rental of plant and machinery
Rental of premises
Staff costs:
- salaries, wages, bonuses and
allowance
- defined contribution plan
- other benefits
Dividend income from short-term
investments
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Fair value gain on investment properties
Fair value (gain)/loss on short-term
investments
(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange:
- realised
- unrealised
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Gain on disposal of short-term investments
Insurance compensation
Interest income
Rebate received/receivable from suppliers
Rental income:
- received/receivable
- waiver of rental receivables
Rental income from investment properties
Write-back of allowance for impairment
losses on receivables

106

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

45
103
402
409
21
779

1
97
1
81
177
49
131
17
4
1,183

-

-

13,946
1,132
854

13,408
1,019
793

778
88
5

328
40
7

(141)
(3,420)

(85)
(140)

(89)
(5,333)
-

(58)
(19,000)
-

(128)

74

(4)

80

(155)
101

65
541

-

-

(80)
(88)
(179)
(110)

21
(126)
(131)
(191)
(306)

(11)
-

(126)
(53)
-

(4)
(35)

(7)
21
(31)

-

-

(1,157)

(184)

-

-
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group

Current tax:
- for the current financial year
- under/(over)provision in the previous
financial year

Deferred taxation (Note 24):
- relating to originating and recognition of
temporary differences
- (over)/underprovision in the previous
financial year

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

4,712

5,195

1,193

4,669

6

(455)

5

(207)

4,718

4,740

1,198

4,462

(582)

119

-

-

(52)

413

-

-

(634)

532

-

-

4,084

5,272

1,198

4,462

During the current financial year, the statutory tax rate remained at 25%.
Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
A subsidiary of the Company has been granted the Pioneer Status incentive under Section 41 of the Promotion
of Investments Act 1986 by the Ministry of International Trade And Industry, Malaysia which qualifies the
subsidiary for exemption from income tax on 70% of its statutory income from pioneer activities for five years
from 1 February 2006 to 31 January 2011.
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit before taxation at the statutory tax rate to
income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:The Group

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

11,050

20,472

4,287

18,558

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%

2,761

5,118

1,072

4,640

Tax effects of:Non-deductible expenses
Non-taxable gains
Pioneer income not subject to tax

857
(1,235)
(227)

532
(51)
(597)

144
(23)
-

29
-

Profit before taxation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont’d)
The Group

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

Deferred tax assets not recognised during
the financial year
(Over)/Underprovision in the previous
financial year:
- current tax
- deferred tax
Differential in tax rates
Others

1,916

292

-

-

6
(52)
55
3

(455)
413
6
14

5
-

(207)
-

Income tax expense for the financial year

4,084

5,272

1,198

4,462

No deferred tax assets are recognised at the end of the reporting period for the following items:The Group

Unutilised tax losses
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange
Impairment losses on receivables

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

2,007
98
7,262

1,005
18
483

9,367

1,506

35. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is arrived at by dividing the Group’s profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of RM6,697,000 by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year
of 120,000,000.
The fully diluted earnings per share for the Group is not presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

36. DIVIDEND
The Group/The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Paid:
In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2009:
- a first and final single tier dividend of 8 sen per ordinary share

-

6,400

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2010:
- a first and final single tier dividend of 4 sen per ordinary share

4,800

-

4,800

6,400

			

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final single tier dividend of 2 sen per ordinary share amounting
to RM2,400,000 in respect of the current financial year will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The
financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if
approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for as a liability in the financial year ending 30 June 2012.

37. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Cost of property, plant and equipment purchased
Amount financed through hire purchase

7,774
(427)

5,968
(368)

Cash disbursed for purchase of property, plant and equipment

7,347

5,600

38. SUMMARY OF EFFECTS OF ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
In the previous financial year, the Company:(a)

subscribed for 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each at par representing a 100% equity interest in Kubiq Sdn.
Bhd. (“KUBIQ”) for a total cash consideration of RM2;

(b)

further subscribed for the entire 99,998 new ordinary shares of RM1 each at par in KUBIQ for a total cash
consideration of RM99,998 to retain its 100% equity interest; and

(c)

subscribed for 300,000 new ordinary shares of RM1 each at par in Signature Aluminium Sdn. Bhd.
(“SASB”), to retain its 60% equity interest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

39. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:The Group

Fixed deposits with licensed banks
(Note 17)
Cash and bank balances

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

166
21,042

162
17,693

820

4,874

21,208

17,855

820

4,874

40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a)

Identifies of related parties
The Group and the Company have related party relationship wiith:(i) its subsidiaries;
(ii) the directors who are the key management personnel; and
(iii) entities controlled by the directors and by the close members of the family of the directors.

(b)

In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company
carried out the following transactions with its related parties during the financial year:The Group

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries
Dividend income receivable
Management fee
Entities controlled by a
director/person connected to
a director
Sale of kitchen and wardrobe
system
Progress billing for projects

(iii) Key management personnel
(including directors)
Short-term employee benefits
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The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

-

-

5,333
1,622

19,000
799

286

813

-

-

7,207

17,007

-

-

2,046

1,976

2,046

657
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

41. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by the directors of the Group and the Company
during the financial year are as follows:The Group

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

Executive directors:
- salaries and other emoluments
- defined contribution plans

911
109

1,144
-

911
109

471
-

Non-executive directors:
- fees

186

186

186

186

1,206

1,330

1,206

657

The number of directors of the Group and of the Company whose total remuneration received from the Group
during the financial year fell within the following bands are analysed as follows:The Group

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

Executive directors:
- RM200,000 - RM399,999
- RM400,000 - RM599,999

2

2

2

2
-

Non-executive directors:
- Below RM50,000

5

5

5

5

7

7

7

7

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital Commitments
The Group

Approved and contracted for:Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
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2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

12,238
2,092

6,899

14,330

6,899
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)
(b) Lease Commitments
		
The Group has various operating lease agreements for office premises and other facilities. Most leases
contain renewable options. Lease terms do not contain restrictions on the Group’s activities concerning
dividends, additional debt or further leasing.
THE GROUP
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Future minimum lease payments:Not later than 1 year

100

154

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITies
The Group

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

-

-

10,031

-

5,864

-

5,864

-

5,864

-

15,895

-

Secured:Corporate guarantee given to licensed
banks for credit facilities granted to
subsidiaries
Performance guarantee extended by
subsidiaries to third parties

44. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group
Executive Directors as its group operating decision makers in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance. For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on
their products and services provided.
The Group is organised into 4 main business segments as follows:-
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(i)

Design, Manufacture and Retail of Kitchen and Wardrobe Systems - involved in the designing,
manufacturing and retailing of Group core business as in kitchen cabinets and wardrobe from point of
design to delivery to the projects, retailers and end consumers.

(ii)

Marketing and Distribution of White Goods - involved in the marketing and distribution of white goods
and home appliances (e.g washing machines, hood, hob, oven, fridge and etc) to projects, retailers and
end consumers.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

44. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont’d)
(iii) Manufacture of Glass and Aluminium Products - involved in supplying and distribution of glass and
aluminium products to projects and end consumers.
(iv)

Others - consist of dormant and investment holding companies which are non-core business and for
investment holding purposes.

The Group Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on the operating
profit or loss which is measured on the same basis as those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Group financing (including finance costs) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated
to operating segments.
Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the operating
segments are presented under unallocated items. Unallocated items comprise mainly investments and
related income, loans and borrowings and related expenses, corporate assets (primarily the Company’s
headquarters) and head office expenses.

(a) Business Segments
Design
Manufacture
And Retail Of
Kitchen And
Wardrobe
Systems
RM’000

The Group

Marketing Manufacture
And
Of Glass
Distribution
And
Of White
Aluminium
Goods
Products
RM’000
RM’000

Others Eliminations
RM’000
RM’000

The Group
RM’000

2011
REVENUE:
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

100,914
29,947

3,714
5,782

11,489
3,099

6,955

(45,783)

116,117
-

Total revenue

130,861

9,496

14,588

6,955

(45,783)

116,117

6,899
(965)

1,497
(73)

1,215
(56)

2,095
(3)

441
-

12,147
(1,097)

5,934

1,424

1,159

2,092

441

11,050
(4,084)

RESULTS
Segment results
Finance costs
Profit from ordinary
activities before
taxation
Income tax expense
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

44. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont’d)
(a) Business Segments (CONT’D)
Design
Manufacture
And Retail Of
Kitchen And
Wardrobe
Systems
RM’000

The Group

Marketing Manufacture
And
Of Glass
Distribution
And
Of White
Aluminium
Goods
Products
RM’000
RM’000

Others Eliminations
RM’000
RM’000

The Group
RM’000

Profit from ordinary
activities after taxation

6,966

Non-controlling interests

(269)

Net profit attributable to
owners of the Company
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets

6,697

129,532

6,863

11,786

65,874

(74,039)

140,016

-

Unallocated assets

140,016
Segment liabilities

82,159

1,125

7,933

3,697

(49,555)

45,359

629

Unallocated liabilities

45,988
Depreciation
Capital expenditure:
- Property, plant and
equipment
- Investment properties
Fair value adjustment for
investment properties

1,798

11

215

-

-

2,024

7,616
9,773

4
-

533
-

-

(379)
-

7,774
9,773

3,420

-

-

-

-

3,420
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44. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)
(a) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT'D)
Design
Manufacture
And Retail Of
Kitchen And
Wardrobe
Systems
RM’000

The Group

Marketing Manufacture
And
Of Glass
Distribution
And
Of White
Aluminium
Goods
Products
RM’000
RM’000

Others Eliminations
RM’000
RM’000

The Group
RM’000

2010
REVENUE:
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

127,825
32,170

3,058
4,395

7,480
3,094

19,799

(59,458)

138,363
-

Total revenue

159,995

7,453

10,574

19,799

(59,458)

138,363

19,942
(743)

815
(46)

660
(27)

17,584
(1)

(17,712)
-

21,289
(817)

RESULTS
Segment results
Finance costs
Profit from ordinary
activities before
taxation
Income tax expense

20,472
(5,272)

Profit from ordinary
activities after taxation
Non-controlling interests

15,200
(172)

Net profit attributable to
owners of the Company

15,028

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

127,410

5,581

8,467

69,192

(75,612)

135,038
1,550
136,588

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

77,282

1,038

5,553

3,214

(45,135)

41,952
1,492
43,444

Depreciation
Capital expenditure:
- Property, plant and
equipment
- Investment properties
Fair value adjustment for
investment properties

1,311

16

214

-

-

1,541

5,626
1,168

14
-

328
-

-

-

5,968
1,168

140

-

-

-

-

140
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

44. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)
(b) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Malaysia
RM’000

Export
RM’000

The Group
RM’000

2011
Revenue

109,459

6,658

116,117

2010
Revenue

119,211

19,152

138,363

THE GROUP

The Group’s assets are mainly located in Malaysia and the costs to acquire property, plant and equipment
are in Malaysia.

45. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES
The applicable closing foreign exchange rates used (expressed on the basis of one unit of foreign currency
to RM equivalent) for the translation of foreign currency balances at the end of the reporting period were as
follows:The Group

Euro
New Zealand Dollar
Singapore Dollar
Thai Baht
United Arab Emirates Dirham
United States Dollar
Indian Rupee
Indonesian Rupiah
Philippine Peso
Vietnamese Dong
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2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

4.38
2.48
2.46
0.09
0.83
3.02
0.07
0.0001
0.07
0.0004

3.96
2.26
2.32
0.10
0.88
3.24
-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial risk management policy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

(a) Financial Risk Management Policies
The Group’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:(i)

Market Risk

(i)

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are denominated
in currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
United States Dollar and United Arab Emirates Dirham. Foreign currency risk is monitored
closely on an ongoing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable level.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency is as follows:United
States Singapore
Dollar
Dollar
The Group
2011
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables and
deposits
Short-term investments
Fixed deposits with licensed
banks
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and
accruals
Hire purchase payables
Term loans

Net financial assets/
(liabilities)
Less: Net financial (assets)/
liabilities denominated
in the respective entities’
functional currencies
Currency exposure

United
Arab
New
Emirates Zealand
dirham
Dollar

Euro

Ringgit
Others Malaysia

Total

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

665

55

1,329

1

-

-

42,676

44,726

3

68
-

-

2
-

135
-

-

4,916
12,490

5,121
12,493

4,769

476

11

152

1

7

166
15,626

166
21,042

5,437

599

1,340

155

136

7

75,874

83,548

212

120

-

17

849

-

11,044

12,242

291
-

66
-

-

-

-

-

6,372
1,030
10,101

6,729
1,030
10,101

503

186

-

17

849

-

28,547

30,102

4,934

413

1,340

138

(713)

7

47,327

53,446

-

(122)

-

(25)

-

-

4,934

291

1,340

113

(713)

7
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RM’000 RM’000

(47,327) (47,474)
-

5,972
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i)

Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)
United
United

Arab

States Singapore
The Group

New

Emirates Zealand

Ringgit

Dollar

Dollar

dirham

Dollar

Euro

Others Malaysia

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

3,577

169

-

-

Total

RM’000 RM’000

2010
Financial assets
1,783

66

Other receivables and
deposits

Trade receivables

-

74

-

-

-

-

2,854

2,928

Short-term investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,333

8,333

Fixed deposits with licensed
banks

44,028

49,623

-

-

-

-

-

-

162

162

2,307

440

-

110

-

-

14,836

17,693

4,090

580

3,577

279

-

-

70,213

78,739

144

72

15

92

541

-

14,608

15,472

Other payables and
accruals

289

54

-

-

-

6

14,354

14,703

Amount owing to a director

613

-

-

-

-

-

-

613

Hire purchase payables

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,432

1,432

Term loans

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,482

2,482

1,046

126

15

92

541

6

32,876

34,702

3,044

454

3,562

187

(541)

(6)

37,337

44,037

609

(154)

-

(124)

-

-

3,653

300

3,562

63

(541)

(6)

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Net financial assets/
(liabilities)
Less: Net financial (assets)/
liabilities denominated
in the respective entities’
functional currencies
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i)

Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)
Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis
THE GROUP
2011
Increase/
(Decrease)
RM’000
Effects on profit after taxation
United States Dollar:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

247
(247)

Singapore Dollar:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

15
(15)

United Arab Emirates Dirham:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

67
(67)

New Zealand Dollar:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

6
(6)

Euro:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

36
(36)

Effects on equity
United States Dollar:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

247
(247)

Singapore Dollar:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

15
(15)

United Arab Emirates Dirham:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

67
(67)

New Zealand Dollar:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

6
(6)

Euro:
- strengthened by 5%
- weakened by 5%

36
(36)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i)

Market Risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to interest rate
risk arises mainly from interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s policy is
to obtain the most favourable interest rates available. Any surplus funds of the Group will be
placed with licensed financial institutions to generate interest income.
Information relating to the Group’s exposure to the interest rate risk of the financial liabilities
is disclosed in Note 46(a)(iii) to the financial statements.

		

The interest rate risk profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments based on
the carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period was:
The Group The Company
2011
2011
RM’000
RM’000
Fixed rate instruments
Fixed deposit with licensed banks
Hire purchase payables

Floating rate instruments
Term loans

166
(1,030)

-

864

-

(10,101)

-

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
A 100 basis points strengthening in the interest rate as at the end of the reporting period
would have decreased profit after taxation by RM101. A 100 basis points weakening would
have had an equal but opposite effect on the profit after taxation. This assumes that all other
variables remain constant.

(iii) Equity Price Risk
The Group’s principal exposure to equity price risk arises mainly from changes in market
prices of money market unit trust funds. Equity price risk is monitored closely and managed
to an acceptable level.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i)

Market Risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Equity Price Risk (Cont’d)
Equity price risk sensitivity analysis
The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the prices
of the quoted investments as at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held
constant:The Group The Company
2011
2011
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease)
(Decrease)
RM’000
RM’000

(ii)

Effects on profit after taxation
Increase of 5%
Decrease of 5%

625
(625)

91
(91)

Effects on equity
Increase of 5%
Decrease of 5%

625
(625)

91
(91)

Credit Risk
The Group’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from
trade and other receivables. The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the application of
credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis. For other financial
assets (including quoted investments and cash and bank balances), the Group minimises credit
risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses
in respect of the trade and other receivables as appropriate. The main components of this allowance
are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss
component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred
but not yet identified. Impairment is estimated by management based on prior experience and the
current economic environment.

Credit risk concentration profile
The Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amount owing by a customer which
constituted approximately 12% of its trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(ii)

Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Exposure to credit risk
As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of the financial assets as at the end of the reporting period.
The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables by geographical region is as follows:The Group

Australia
Brunei
India
Mauritius
Singapore
Sri Lanka
Thailand
United Arab Emirates
Vietnam
Malaysia

2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

95
22
329
11
55
164
29
1,329
29
42,663

103
560
81
2
585
5
3,577
469
44,241

44,726

49,623

Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2011 is as follows:Gross
Amount
RM’000

Individual
Impairment
RM’000

Collective
Impairment
RM’000

Carrying
Value
RM’000

Not past due

17,539

-

-

17,539

Past due:- less than 3 months
- 3 to 6 months
- over 6 months

8,674
9,462
19,992

(402)
(9,064)

(1,475)

8,674
9,060
9,453

55,667

(9,466)

(1,475)

44,726

The Group
2011
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(ii)

Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Ageing analysis (Cont’d)
At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were those in
significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured
by any collateral or credit enhancement.
The collective impairment allowance is determined based on estimated irrecoverable amounts
from the sale of goods, determined by reference to past default experience.

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these trade receivables.
They are substantially companies with good collection track record and no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
A significant portion of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are regular
customers that have been transacting with the Group. The Groups uses ageing analysis to monitor
the credit quality of the trade receivables. Any receivables having significant balances past due or
more than 90 days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are monitored individually.
(iii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group practises
prudent risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of funding
through certain committed credit facilities.
The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-

The Group

Weighted
Average
Effective
Rate
%

Contractual
Carrying Undiscounted
Amount
Cash Flows
RM’000
RM’000

Within
1 Year
RM’000

Over
1–5
5
Years
Years
RM’000 RM’000

2011
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Hire purchase payables
4.26 - 9.0
Term loans
4.8 - 7.4

12,242
6,729
1,030
10,101

12,242
6,729
1,213
12,654

12,242
6,729
364
1,444

733
5,933

116
5,276

30,102

32,838

20,779

6,666

5,392
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)
Weighted
Average
Effective
Rate
%

The Group

Contractual
Carrying Undiscounted
Amount
Cash Flows
RM’000
RM’000

Within
1 Year
RM’000

Over
1–5
5
Years Years
RM’000 RM’000

2010
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Amount owing
to director
Hire purchase payables
4.26 - 7.07
Term loans
6.85

15,472
14,703

15,472
14,703

15,472
14,703

-

-

613
1,432
2,482

613
1,662
2,932

613
646
596

952
2,294

64
42

34,702

35,382

32,030

3,246

106

-

108

108

108

-

-

-

64

64

64

-

-

The Company
2011
Other payables and accruals
2010
Other payables and accruals

(b) Capital Risk Management
The Group manages its capital by maintaining an optimal capital structure so as to support its businesses
and maximise shareholders value. To achieve this objective, the Group may make adjustments to the
capital structure in view of changes in economic conditions, such as adjusting the amount of dividend
payment, returning of capital to shareholders or issuing new shares.
The Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio. The Group’s strategies were unchanged
from the previous financial year. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as borrowings plus trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(b) Capital Risk Management (Cont’d)
The debt-equity ratio of the Group as at the end of the reporting period was as follows:
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Amount owing to a director
Hire purchase payables
Term loans

12,242
6,729
1,030
10,101

15,472
14,703
613
1,432
2,482

Less: Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Less: Cash and bank balances

30,102
166
21,042

34,702
162
17,693

8,894

16,847

94,028

93,144

0.1

0.2

Net debt
Total equity
Debt-to-equity ratio

Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note No. 17/2005, the Company is required to
maintain a consolidated shareholders’ equity (total equity attributable to owners of the Company) equal
to or not less than the 25% of the issued and paid-up share capital (excluding treasury shares) and such
shareholders’ equity is not less than RM40 million. The Company has complied with this requirement.

(c)

Classification Of Financial Instruments
The Group The Company
2011
2011
RM’000
RM’000
Financial assets

Loans and receivables financial assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables and deposits
Amount owing by subsidiaries
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

Fair value through profit and loss
Short-term investments
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44,726
5,121
166
21,042

3
31,172
820

71,055

31,995

12,493

1,823
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(c)

Classification Of Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
The Group The Company
2011
2011
RM’000
RM’000
Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Hire purchase payables
Term loans

12,242
6,729
1,030
10,101

108
-

30,102

108

(d) Fair Values Of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the financial statements
approximated their fair values except for following:2011

The Group
Hire purchase payables

2010

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

1,030

1,071

1,432

1,481

(d) Fair Values Of Financial Instruments
The following summarises the methods used to determine the fair values of the financial instruments:(i)

The financial assets and financial liabilities maturing within the next 12 months approximated their
fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial instruments.

(ii)

The fair value hire purchase payables is determined by discounting the relevant cash flows using
current interest rates for similar instruments as at the end of the reporting period.

(iii) The carrying amounts of the term loans approximated their fair values as these instruments bear
interest at variable rates.
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are as follow:The Group

Hire purchase payables
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2011
%

2010
%

6.44 - 6.54

6.44 - 6.54

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (cont’d)

47. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The details of the significant events during the financial year are as follows:(a)

On 14 July 2010, the Company completed the bonus issue of 40,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50
each in the Company credited as fully paid-up on the basis of 1 new ordinary share of RM0.50 each
(“Bonus Shares”) for every 2 existing ordinary shares of RM0.50 each held in the Company (“Bonus
Issue”). The Bonus Shares were granted listing and quotation on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad upon the completion of the Bonus Issue on 14 July 2010. The Bonus Shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company; and

(b)

On 29 April 2011, Signature Kitchen Industries Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Signature
Cabinet Sdn. Bhd. was placed under Members’ Voluntary Liquidation pursuant to Section 254(1)(b) of the
Companies Act 1965.

48. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The following figures have been reclassified to conform with the adoption of the amendments to FRS 117Leases as disclosed in Note 3(a)(v) to the financial statements:The Group
As
Restated
RM’000

As
Previously
Reported
RM’000

29,763
-

23,718
6,045

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Extract):Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

49. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND UNREALISED PROFITS
The breakdown of the retained profits/(accumulated losses) of the Group and of the Company as at the end of
the reporting period into realised and unrealised profits/(losses) are presented in accordance with the directive
issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.
1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, as
follows:The Group The Company
2011
2011
RM’000
RM’000
Total retained profits:
- realised
- unrealised

50,150
3,637

4,743
-

Consolidation adjustments

53,787
6,319

4,743
-

At 30 June

60,106

4,743
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

Location

Description / Use

Tenure

Approximate Total
Carrying
Year of
age of
Area
Amount at Acquisition
buildings at (square 30 June 2011 /Valuation
30 June 2011 feet)
(RM’000) /Fair Value

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Lot 24, Jalan Teknologi,
Taman Sains Selangor 1, Kota
Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor, Malaysia

Head Office and
Factory Building

Leasehold 30 years
Expires 2034

5 years

98,043

5,868

2007

Factory Building in Leasehold 30 years
Lot 2, Jalan Teknologi, Taman
Sains Selangor 1, Kota
progress
Expires 2037
Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor, Malaysia

4 years

n/a

6,844

2008

Lot 24, Jalan Teknologi,
Taman Sains Selangor 1, Kota
Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor, Malaysia

Head Office and
Factory Land

Leasehold 30 years
Expires 2034

n/a

174,240

3,000

2007

Lot 2, Jalan Teknologi, Taman
Sains Selangor 1, Kota
Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor, Malaysia

Factory land

Leasehold 30 years
Expires 2037

n/a

145,377

2,804

2008

> 4 years

2,000

600

2008

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
C-18-6 East Lake Residence,
Pekan Serdang,
Daerah Petaling, Selangor.

128

Service Apartment Leasehold 99 years.
Expired 2100

CP24-10, Casa Prima,
No.25, Jalan Metro 2,
Metro Prima,
52100 Kepong, Kuala Lumpur

Residential
Apartment

Leasehold 99 years,
Expired 2099

> I year

1,985

370

2010

CP24-11, Casa Prima,
No.25, Jalan Metro 2,
Metro Prima,
52100 Kepong, Kuala Lumpur

Residential
Apartment

Leasehold 99 years,
Expired 2099

> I year

1,985

370

2010

CP25-03, Casa Prima,
No.25, Jalan Metro 2,
Metro Prima,
52100 Kepong, Kuala Lumpur

Residential
Apartment

Leasehold 99 years,
Expired 2099

> I year

2,125

420

2010

B3A-1-9, Block 3A,
Jalan Teknologi 2/1B,
Kota D'sara Signature Park,
Kota Damansara,
47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor.

Shop Office

Leasehold 99 years,
Expired 2104

> I year

9,042

4,693

2010
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LIST OF PROPERTIES (cont’d)

Location

Approximate Total
Carrying
Year of
age of
Area
Amount at Acquisition
buildings at (square 30 June 2011 /Valuation
30 June 2011 feet)
(RM’000) /Fair Value

Description / Use

Tenure

B3A-1-9, Block 3A,
Jalan Teknologi 2/1B,
Kota D'sara Signature Park,
Kota Damansara,
47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor.

Shop Office

Leasehold 99 years,
Expired 2104

> I year

6,157

3,196

2010

B3A-1-9, Block 3A,
Jalan Teknologi 2/1B,
Kota D'sara Signature Park,
Kota Damansara,
47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor.

Shop Office

Leasehold 99 years,
Expired 2104

> I year

6,157

3,196

2010

> 2 years

936

225

2009

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Parcel No. B-22-2, Phase 1AHighrise Residences Leasehold 99 years,
Boheme Tower,
Expired 2104
Lot 54 Seksyen 42, Geran 71996
Parcel No. C-28-6E, PT: Lot
1897, Geran Mukim 1280.
Parcel No. N-16-3A (North Wing),
Type D1, Storey No. Level 16
Building No. 1, 6 Cap Square

Condominium (type
Duplex)

Freehold

> I year

2,694

1,758

2010

Condominium

Freehold

< I year

1,389

129

2011
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Analysis of Shareholdings

as at 28 October 2011

Authorised share capital			
Issued and fully paid up share capital
Class of shares				
Voting rights by show of hand		
Voting rights by poll 			

:
:
:
:
:

RM200,000,000
RM60,000,000
Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
One vote for every member
One vote for every share held

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Category

Shareholders

%

Shareholdings

%

Less than 100
100 to 1,000
1,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 100,000
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares

16
40
483
200
32
3

2.07
5.17
62.40
25.84
4.13
0.39

619
24,069
2,346,750
5,480,811
24,826,847
87,320,904

0.00
0.02
1.95
4.57
20.69
72.77

TOTAL

774

100.00

120,000,000

100.00

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
Direct Interest
No. of Shares
%

Name of Directors
Tan Kee Choong
Chooi Yoey Sun
Dato’ Anuar bin Othman
Wong Maw Chuan
Yap Khong
Nik Mohd Iskandar bin Nik Hassan
Dr. Lim Yin Chow

31,200,004
31,028,250
121*
-

26.00
25.86
0.00
-

Indirect Interest
No. of Shares
%
25,092,650^

20.91

Notes :
* Held through nominee companies
^ Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in HSC Healthcare Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies
Act, 1965
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Analysis of Shareholdings (cont’d)
as at 28 October 2011

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Name of Substantial Shareholders
Tan Kee Choong
Chooi Yoey Sun
HSC Healthcare Sdn Bhd
Dr. Lim Yin Chow

Direct Interest
No. of Shares
%
31,200,004
31,028,250
25,092,650
-

26.00
25.86
20.91
-

Deemed Interest
No. of Shares
%
25,092,650^

20.91

Notes :
^ Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in HSC Healthcare Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies
Act, 1965

SHARES IN RELATED CORPORATION
There is no change in the deemed interest of Directors in related corporation as disclosed in the Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 on page 58 of this Annual Report.

List of Thirty Largest Shareholders
No

Name

No. of Shares

%

1

TAN KEE CHOONG

31,200,004

26.00

2

CHOOI YOEY SUN

31,028,250

25.86

3

EB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR HSC HEALTHCARE SDN. BHD.
(KLM)

25,092,650

20.91

4

A.A. ANTHONY NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN THENG LIANG

5,508,000

4.59

5

MALAYSIA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
GREAT EASTERN LIFE ASSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD (LSF)

4,035,000

3.36

6

CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MOHD ANWAR BIN HAJI ABDUL
WAHAB

2,250,000

1.88

7

CHING YOU LIN

1,980,000

1.65

8

WONG JEE SHYONG

1,825,500

1.52

9

ANG CHEK PEOW

1,358,100

1.13

10

NOR JUNIOR BIN MD NOR

1,306,500

1.09

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

131

Analysis of Shareholdings (cont’d)
as at 28 October 2011

List of Thirty Largest Shareholders (cont’d)

132

No

Name

No. of Shares

%

11

MAYBAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YOONG FUI KIEN

1,130,000

0.94

12

JAYSON WONG CHIEN WEI

722,200

0.60

13

MALAYSIA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
GREAT EASTERN LIFE ASSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD (LBF)

465,000

0.39

14

AIBB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TUNG HAN BEE

350,000

0.29

15

TOH CHAU EE

314,500

0.26

16

KOK FATT KONG

302,500

0.25

17

WONG CHOONG LOONG

286,500

0.24

18

MOHAMED NIZAM BIN MOHAMED JAKEL

280,000

0.23

19

MAYBAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR FOO MOONG NAH

258,000

0.22

20

CHAN KENG MENG

230,000

0.19

21

NEO BOON SIONG

226,000

0.19

22

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR PATRICK LIM @ LIM KUAN CHI
(E-BPT/JAH)

214,300

0.18

23

YEAT SEW CHUONG

200,000

0.17

24

TEE BENG CHEE

200,000

0.17

25

MOHD ANWAR BIN HAJI ABDUL WAHAB

151,247

0.13

26

WIE HOCK BENG

150,000

0.13

27

LEONG KIN SAN

150,000

0.13

28

CHONG HON MIN

136,500

0.11

29

LEONG KIN SAN

130,000

0.11

30

TAN LIONG HUAT @ TAN SWEE HUAT

124,000

0.10
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Greens III, Sport
Wing, Jalan Kelab Tropicana, Off Jalan Tropicana Utama, Persiaran Tropicana, Tropicana Golf & Country Resort,
47410 Petaling Jaya, Selangor on Thursday, 15 December 2011 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:-

AGENDA
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 together
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Resolution 1

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM186,000 for the financial year ended 30 June
2011.

Resolution 2

3.

To declare a first and final single tier dividend of 2 sen per share in respect of the financial
year ended 30 June 2011.

Resolution 3

4.

To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Article 129 of the
Company’s Articles of Association:
(a)
(b)

5.

Resolution 4
Resolution 5

Nik Mohd Iskandar Bin Nik Hassan
Yap Khong

To re-appoint Messrs. Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 6

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and if thought fit, pass the following Ordinary Resolutions:6.

Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.

Resolution 7

“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Articles of Association of
the Company and subject to the approvals of the relevant governmental and/or regulatory
authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue shares in the Company, at
any time to such persons and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the
Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number
of shares to be issued does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the
approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in force
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)

7.

Proposed Shareholders’ Ratification for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a
Revenue or Trading Nature

Resolution 8

“THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Directors to enter into and give effect to
Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for
the Company and its subsidiary’s day-to-day operations in the ordinary course of business on
terms not more favourable to the Related Parties than those generally available to the public
and not detrimental to minority shareholders of the Company as set out in Section 2.5 of the
Circular to Shareholders dated 23 November 2011.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be authorised to complete and do all acts and things
(including executing all such documents as may be required) as they may consider expedient
or necessary to give effect to the Proposed Shareholders’ Ratification for Recurrent Related
Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature.”
8.

Proposed Authority for the Company to Purchase Its Own Shares of Up to Ten Percent
(10%) of the Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company (“Proposed Share BuyBack Authority”)
“THAT, subject to the provisions of Section 67A of the Companies Act, 1965, the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, Part IIIA of the Companies Regulations 1966 and
Chapter 12 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Company be
and is hereby authorised to purchase such number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the
Company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority”) as may be determined by the Directors of
the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as
the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company provided that:
(i)

the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares purchased and/or held by the
Company as treasury shares shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued and paidup ordinary share capital of the Company at any point in time;

(ii)

the funds allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing its shares shall
not exceed the total retained profits and/or share premium account of the Company.
The audited retained profits and share premium account of the Company stood at
RM4,743,000 and RM nil respectively as at 30 June 2011.

(iii) the authority conferred by this resolution shall continue to be in force until:
(a)

the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the forthcoming AGM,
at which time the said authority will lapse, unless the authority is renewed at that
meeting, either unconditionally or subject to conditions; or

(b)

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required
to be held pursuant to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 (but shall not
extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 143(2) of the
Companies Act, 1965); or

(c)

revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a general
meeting,

whichever occurs first.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)

THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with the shares
purchased at their absolute discretion, either partially or fully, in the following manner:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

cancel all the shares so purchased;
retain the shares so purchased as treasury shares;
distribute the treasury shares as share dividends to shareholders;
resell the treasury shares on Bursa Securities in accordance to the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Securities; and
any combination of (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above.

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to give effect to the
Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority with full power to assent to any modifications and/or
amendments as may be required by the relevant authorities.”
9.

To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.

NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that a first and final single tier dividend of 2 sen per share for the financial year
ended 30 June 2011, if approved at the Fifth Annual General Meeting, will be paid on Monday, 9 January 2012 to
Depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on Monday, 19 December 2011.
A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of:
(a)

Shares transferred to the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on Monday, 19 December 2011 in
respect of ordinary transfers; and

(b)

Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to Rules of the
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board

Tai Yit Chan (MAICSA 7009143)
Tan Ai Ning (MAICSA 7015852)
Secretaries
Selangor Darul Ehsan
23 November 2011

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

135

Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)

Notes:
(i)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy/proxies who need not be
a member/members of the Company, an advocate, an approved Company auditor, or a person approved by the Registrar
to attend and vote in his/her stead.

(ii)

A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting. Where a member appoints two proxies,
the proxies shall not be valid unless the member specifies the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each
proxy. Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint at least one proxy in respect of each securities account.

(iii)

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in
writing, or if the appointor is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or its duly authorised
attorney.

(iv)

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG
Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than forty-eight (48) hours
before the time set for holding the meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

Explanatory Note on Special Business
Ordinary Resolution 7
Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the Directors to issue shares up to an aggregate
amount not exceeding 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company for the time being, for such
purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest of the Company without having to convene separate
general meetings. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting.
This is a renewal of the mandate obtained from its shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting held on
17 December 2010 and will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including
but not limited to further placement of shares for purpose of funding future investment, working capital and/or
acquisitions.
As at the date of this notice, 40,000,000 new shares were allotted on 13 July 2010 pursuant to the bonus issue of
one new share for every two existing shares held.
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Ordinary Resolution 8
Proposed Shareholders’ Ratification for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, is intended to confirm and ratify the recurrent related party transcactions of a
revenue or trading in nature, particulars of which are set out in the Circular to Shareholders of the Company dated
23 November 2011.
Please refer to the Circular to Shareholders dated 23 November 2011 which is dispatched together with this Annual
Report.
Ordinary Resolution 9
Proposed Authority for the Company to Purchase Its Own Shares of Up to Ten Percent (10%) of the Issued and
Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority”)
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will empower the Directors to purchase the Company’s shares of up
to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any point in time, by utilising the funds allocated
which shall not exceed the total retained profits and share premium of the Company. This authority, unless revoked
or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.
Please refer to the Circular to Shareholders dated 23 November 2011 for further information.
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SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD
(Company No. 754118-K)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No. of Shares held

FORM OF PROXY
I/We

(Full Name in Capital Letters)

of

(Full Address)

being a member(s) of Signature International Berhad hereby appoint
of

(Full Name in Capital Letters)

(Full Address)

or failing him/her,

(Full Name in Capital Letters)

of

(Full Address)

or failing him/her, *the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy(ies), to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the
Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Greens III, Sport Wing, Jalan Kelab Tropicana, Off
Jalan Tropicana Utama, Persiaran Tropicana, Tropicana Golf & Country Resort, 47410 Petaling Jaya, Selangor
on Thursday, 15 December 2011 at 10.00. a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:
No.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Resolutions
To receive the Audited Financial Statements
To approve the payment of Directors’ fees
To declare a first and final single tier dividend of 2 sen per share
To re-elect Nik Mohd Iskandar Bin Nik Hassan as Director
To re-elect Yap Khong as Director
To re-appoint Messrs Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company
Special business
Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
Proposed shareholders’ ratification for recurrent related party transactions of
a revenue or trading nature
Proposed authority for the Company to purchase its own shares

For

Against

(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes on how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific direction
as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain at his discretion.)
day of
, 2011
Signed this
						
Signature of Shareholder
*Strike out whichever not applicable

For appointment of two proxies, the
shareholdings to be represented by the proxies:
Proxies
% of shares
Proxy 1
Proxy 2
Total
100%

Notes:
(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy/proxies who need not be a member/
members of the Company, an advocate, an approved Company auditor, or a person approved by the Registrar to attend and vote in his/
her stead.
(ii) A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting. Where a member appoints two proxies, the proxies
shall not be valid unless the member specifies the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. Where a member
of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint at
least one proxy in respect of each securities account.
(iii) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if
the appointor is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or its duly authorised attorney.
(iv) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower, 8 First
Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the meeting
or at any adjournment thereof.

Then fold here

AFFIX
STAMP

To:

1st fold here

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD
Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower
8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor
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